
 
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2014 

 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION (IF NECESSARY) 
 

 
2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes July 21, 2014 
   Special Council Meeting Minutes August 11, 2014 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting June 23, 2014, and; 
Special Council Meeting August 11, 2014. 

 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
  7.1  REPORT NO. DS 2014-19 
    Zone Change Application 05/14 
    Dennis Kropf / Steelgate Farms Inc. 
    Part of Lot 3, Concession 3, Block A 
    1092 Bridge Street 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Zone Change Application 05/14 made by Dennis Kropf / Steelgate Farms inc., affecting Part 
of Lot 3, Concession 3, Block A not be approved. 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, August 25, 2014 2 

9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO  
 
   9.1.1 REPORT NO. CAO 2014-03 
     Waterloo Regional Economic Development Strategy (WREDS)  
     Update Report 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Wilmot Township approve in principle the Waterloo Region Economic Development 
Strategy (WRDES) and the creation of the Waterloo Region Economic Development Corporation 
(WREDC) as described in Report CAO 2014-03; and 
 
Further that staff be directed to continue to work in partnership with the Region of Waterloo and 
the other Area Municipalities to develop associated implementation and transition plans with a 
target WREDC commencement date of January 2016, subject to Council approval of the future 
implementation and transition process. 
 
 
 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-26 
     Country Paws Kennel 
     Request to Lift Kennel Licence Conditions 
     1881 Carmel-Koch Road, St. Agatha 

Township of Wilmot 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Council approves the request to lift the kennel licence conditions concerning scheduled 
hours for outdoor access for Country Paws Kennel. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the kennel owner install a hedge row that is conducive to the growing 
environment to the east of the solid board fence by October 31, 2014 to be in compliance with the 
Council resolution passed on July 21, 2003. 
 
 
   9.2.2 REPORT NO. CL2014-27 
     Lottery Licence Request 

Optimist Club of New Hamburg 
Moparfest Car Raffle  

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the application from the Optimist Club of New Hamburg be authorized for a raffle lottery 
licence for an automobile to be awarded at the annual Moparfest event on August 16, 2015 in 
addition to four early bird prizes with a total value of $49,257.65;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT the authorization to grant this raffle licence be conditional that the lottery be 
conducted in accordance with the Ministry of Consumer and Commercial Relations, the Lottery 
Licensing Policy Manual Guidelines on lotteries and raffles and Township of Wilmot Lottery 
Licensing Policies. 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, August 25, 2014 3 

9.3  FINANCE  
 
   9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-24 
     Development Charges Background Study and By-law 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT report FIN 2014-24 regarding the Development Charges Background Study and By-law be 
endorsed. 
 
       

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS  
 
   9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-2014-13 
     Public Works Activity Report 
     April - June 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Public Works Department Activity Reports for the months of April, May and June 2014 
be received for information 
 
       

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
  
   9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-18 
     July Building Statistics 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the July 2014 Building Statistics be received for information.  
 
 
   9.5.2 REPORT NO. DS 2014-17 
     362 Fairview Street, New Hamburg 
     Riverbend Brownstones Inc. 
     Requirement for Municipal Sidewalks on Bleams 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Council accept the request of Riverbend Brownstones Inc. respecting the requirement 
for the construction of municipal sidewalks on Bleams Road West at this time. 
 
    

9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES  
 
   9.6.1 REPORT NO. PRD 2014-11 
     Tender 2014-24 Softball Diamond Lighting Systems 
      
Recommendation 
 
THAT Tender 2014-24 to Design, Supply and Install Softball Diamond Lighting Systems at Sir 
Adam Beck Park, Baden and Norm S. Hill Park, New Hamburg, be awarded to Boshart Electric Ltd. 
for the bid price of $131,176.55 net of the HST rebate. 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, August 25, 2014 4 

 9.7  FIRE – no reports 
 
      
9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE – no reports 
 
      

10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 10.1 Grand River Conservation Authority – July/August 2014 Grand Actions 

10.2 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing – 2013 Financial Information Return 
Certificate 

10.3 Grand River Conservation Authority – General Membership / Strategic Planning 
Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2014 

10.4 Grand River Conservation Authority – General Membership Meeting, June 27, 2014 
10.5 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Current, July 2014 
10.6 Grand River Conservation Authority – GRCA Current, August 2014 
10.7 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing – Ice Storm Assistance Program Eligibility 
10.8 Pioneer Hi-Bred Limited – Letter of Support and Funding for Rural Emergencies 

 
11. BY-LAWS  
 

11.1 By-law No. 2014-33, By-law to Remove Holding Provisions from the Steinmann 
Mennonite Church Cemetery expansion 

11.2 By-law No. 2014-34, Development Charges By-law 
11.3 By-law No. 2014-35, By-law to Provide for Advance Voting Dates  

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2014-33, 2014-34 and 2014-35 be read a first, second and third time and finally 
passed in Open Council. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2014-36 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-36 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on August 25, 
2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 



TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014 
 

CLOSED COUNCIL MEETING 
WILMOT COMMUNITY ROOM 

6:15 P.M. 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

Members Present: Mayor L. Armstrong, Councillors A. Junker, P. Roe, B. Fisher, J. Gerber,  
M. Murray 

 
Staff Present: Chief Administrative Officer G. Whittington, Deputy Clerk D. Mittelholtz, Director of 

Public Works G. Charbonneau, Director of Facilities and Recreation Services  
S. Nancekivell, Director of Development Services H. O’Krafka, Fire Chief M. Raine, 
Director of Finance R. Tse, Curator/Director of Castle Kilbride T. Loch, Senior 
MLEO D. Wallace, MLEO K. Way, MLEO D. Zeinstra, Manager of Accounting P. 
Kelly, Assistant Curator S. Gropp 

 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Resolution No. 2014-137 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT a Closed Meeting of Council be held on Monday, July 21, 2014 at  6:15 p.m. in accordance 
with Section 239 (2) (b) and (c) of the Municipal Act, 2001, for the purposes of considering the 
following matters: 
 

2 (b) personal matters about an identifiable individual 
   (c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land.  
 

CARRIED. 
 

 
2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
Resolution No. 2014-138 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher             Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
That we reconvene into Open Session of Council at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong requested that the people present think of those affected by the recent air tragedy for 
Flight 17. 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 2 

4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
None disclosed. 
 
 
6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes June 23, 2014 
 
Resolution No. 2014-139 
 
Moved by: A. Junker              Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as presented: 
 

Regular Council Meeting June 23, 2014. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
  7.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-21 
   Country Paws Kennel 
   Request to Lift Kennel Licence Conditions 
   1881 Carmel-Koch Road, St. Agatha 

Township of Wilmot 
 
Resolution No. 2014-140 
 
Moved by: A. Junker              Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT Report No CL2014-21 be received for information.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong announced that this is a public consultation being held pursuant to By-law No. 2008-
01 to consider a request from Glenda Rutherford of Country Paws Kennels located at 1881 Carmel-Koch 
Road to have the licence conditions placed on the kennel lifted.  He advised that the adjacent property 
owners within 150 meters of the subject property had been notified of the request and will be given an 
opportunity to provide comment on the request.  
 
Mayor Armstrong stated that persons attending as delegations at this meeting are required to leave their 
names and addresses which will become part of the public record and advised that this information may 
be posted on the Township’s official website. 
 
The Deputy Clerk highlighted the report. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked the registered delegations if they wished to address Council. 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 3 

Russ Straus, 2400 Notre Dame Drive, St. Agatha 
 
Mr. Straus expressed to Council his strong opposition to the lifting of the kennel licence conditions despite 
his love for dogs.  He advised Council that he dislikes living next to a kennel with forty eight dogs and he 
reminded Council that they granted the increase in dogs allowed at the kennel with the imposed 
conditions that had been negotiated and agreed upon by the kennel owner and the kennel neighbours 
who oppose the kennel.  He noted to Council that, as per the agreement, he did not complain about noise 
from the kennel provided the schedule in the licence conditions were adhered to.  He suggested that the 
noise is intolerable when the dogs are allowed outside which was extended to a longer period of time by 
Council in 2008. 
 
Mr. Straus advised Council that he is of the opinion that the kennel licence conditions should not be 
amended unless the kennel owner and the opposing neighbours reach a new agreement.  He expressed 
his belief that information from other municipalities relative to dog kennels is invalid, that the fact that no 
other kennels have licence conditions imposed on them is irrelevant and that the comments from the 
Humane Society are hearsay. 
 
With regards to his new house, Mr. Straus notified Council that he built it in the new location because of 
the restrictions on when the dogs could be allowed outside.  He stated that the Township notifications are 
circulated to those who are most affected by the kennel and that their comments should carry the most 
weight when making the decision. 
 
Mr. Straus responded to Councillor B. Fisher by stating that the noise levels are “okay” when inside their 
home. 
 
At Mayor L. Armstrong’s request, Mr. Straus agreed to provide his statement in writing to the Clerk.  The 
statement is attached as Appendix ‘A.’ 
 
Linda and Jay Churchill, 1896 Carmel-Koch Road, St. Agatha 
 
Mrs. Churchill notified Council that she is only attending this meeting because the noise from the kennel 
is a problem, a nuisance and is stressful.  She stated that she was told no other changes would be made 
to the kennel licence conditions.  She notified Council that they have made no complaints regarding the 
kennel with the exception of two calls in the spring of 2014 since they felt the noise was excessive. 
 
Mrs. Churchill questioned why staff and the Mayor would meet with the kennel owner regarding this 
request but that the Township made no effort to meet with the neighbours in opposition to the kennel.  
She suggested that the kennel is in contravention of the Township’s Noise By-law.  She expressed that 
Council and the kennel owner should adhere to the agreement made with the neighbours in opposition to 
the kennel.  She concluded by noting for Council that the kennel owner included the schedule for hours 
the dogs were allowed outside by the 2003 Council Resolution not the updated 2008 Council Resolution. 
 
Mr. Churchill expressed to Council that when the dogs are indoors that it is not quiet either.  He noted that 
when the dogs are dropped off and picked up by their owners that the animals are making noise.  He 
wanted to ensure that Council recognized that this is a temporary, boarding Council not a breeding 
kennel.   
 
Mr. Churchill noted that he has made few or no complaints to uphold the agreement made with the kennel 
owner.  He stated that Country Paw’s claims to be the only kennel with licence conditions is irrelevant.  
He stated that he has no idea on the operations of other kennels.  He further stated that no one knows 
what it is like to live next to a kennel.  He concluded by stating that he has a contract with the kennel 
owner which he intends to ensure is upheld.  
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if the applicant wished to address to Council. 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 4 

Ms. Rutherford provided a handout to Council which was distributed.  She noted that the handout 
illustrates the schedule allowing the dogs outside from 2003 and 2008.  She read from the handout which 
has been attached as Appendix ‘B.’ 
 
Ms. Rutherford clarified for Councillor B. Fisher that the dogs are allowed outside in small groups at 
different times during the schedule.  She also stated that some dogs are louder than others and may tend 
to bark more. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if anyone wished to speak on the application.   
 
Mr. Straus addressed Council again with regards to the fact that Ms. Rutherford appeared at a Public 
Meeting regarding the building of his new house and had it noted that he is choosing to build closer to her 
kennel.  He agreed that the kennel existed before the new home was built but that he had lived at the 
property across the road from the kennel long before it began operations.  He argued that he was not 
aware that the kennel would be raised during the Public Meeting for his house so he therefore disagrees 
with Ms. Rutherford’s comments relative to that meeting. 
 
In response to Councillor P. Roe, Mr. Straus stated that in 2008 he enlisted the services of an acoustical 
engineer to mitigate the noise from the kennel and subsequently built a berm which has not provided 
much assistance with regards to noise.  He then stated that he is trying to get along with the neighbours 
but that it does not seem to be reciprocal.  Councillor P. Roe then suggested that perhaps the berm would 
have decreased some sound within the spectrum but not all. 
 
In response to Councillor B. Fisher, the Senior MLEO stated that the Township has other kennels that are 
similar in size and larger but that no noise complaints have been received. 
 
The Deputy Clerk suggested to Council that a comparison chart for other kennels in Wilmot Township can 
be included with the August 25th report which would include proximity information to neighbouring 
properties and complaint information with respect to noise. 
 
Mr. Straus noted staff’s comments concerning the lack of complaints for other kennels by stating that no 
complaints have been made regarding Country Paws Kennel for the past six years but that if the kennel 
licence conditions are removed that it would result in complaints.  
 
Councillor J. Gerber asked Mr. Straus and the Senior MLEO to theorize why this kennel seems to 
generate complaints while others do not.  Mr. Straus stated that he cannot speak with regards to other 
kennels.  The Senior MLEO reiterated that other kennels which are significantly larger do not generate 
complaints.  He then explained that all calls regarding noise that are received by the Municipal Law 
Enforcement Officers are followed up and that all kennels are inspected annually. 
 
Councillor P. Roe advised Mr. Straus that in the absence of the conditions imposed by Council that any 
agreement that may exist between himself and the kennel owner would still exist. 
 
Mr. Straus concurred with Councillor P. Roe, stating he is not a lawyer, but that he could not guarantee 
that Council would not become involved with regards to this matter. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong requested that the line of discussion cease in the event that the matter of the 
agreement becomes a civil, legal matter. 
 
Councillor J. Gerber requested if the kennel owner could provide a speculation as to why other kennels 
do not generate the same concerns from neighbours regarding noise.  Ms. Rutherford suggested that 
other kennels may have neighbours which are more tolerable.  She noted that when she has discussed 
this matter with other kennel owners and operators that they do not understand how or why this problem 
would exisit.  With regards to the discussions with the neighbours who have problems with the kennel she 
said that she did try to discuss the matter but that it was difficult for her to express her side of the 
situation.  She cited her opinion that it is not fair to the animals to have the schedule and it is not fair to 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 5 

her given the level of intolerance she is experiencing.  She concluded by stating that she would be willing 
to compromise but is unsure if a compromise could be reached.  
 
Mrs. Churchill asked if she could address Council further.  She noted that the schedule and inspections 
regarding the kennel were from 2003 and that conditions may have changed since then.  She questioned 
how objective the inspections concerning noise are by suggesting that the By-Law Enforcement vehicle 
could be seen by the kennel owner during this time and it would be obvious why they are there.  She 
asked Council to consider these opinions when reading staff’s observations.  She stated her opinion that 
more consideration is being given to the dogs rights then to the neighbours rights.  She concluded by 
stating that this is very stressful and that she should not have to be tolerant any longer.  
 
Mr. Churchill also asked to address Council again.  He stated that his impression of the negotiations in 
2008 were that they were all very cooperative and that Ms. Rutherford’s portrayal is not reflective of what 
happened. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked twice if anyone else wished to address Council, and in the absence of any 
comments, declared the public meeting to be closed. 
 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 

 
 
9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO – no reports 
 
    
 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2014-22 
     Petition from Stephen and Linda Lichti  

for Municipal Drainage Works 
South Part of Lot 26, Concession South of Bleams Road 
New Hamburg, Township of Wilmot 

 
Resolution No. 2014-141 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher             Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot accept the Petition for Municipal Drainage Works received from 
Stephen and Linda Lichti for the South Part of Lot 26, Concession South of Bleams Road, and 
authorize the Clerk to proceed accordingly under The Drainage Act. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
   9.2.2 REPORT NO. CL2014-23 
     Appointment of Engineer 

Petition for Municipal Drainage Works 
Lot 15, Concession North of Bleams Road 
1748 Wilmot Centre Road, Baden  
Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo 

 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 6 

Resolution No. 2014-142 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT Dietrich Engineering of 515 Dotzert Court, Waterloo be appointed as the Engineer relative to 
the Petition from Wiebe Nauta for 1748 Wilmot Centre Road, Baden, Lot 15, Concession North of 
Bleams Road, and authorize the Clerk to proceed accordingly under The Drainage Act. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

9.2.3 REPORT NO. CL2014-24 
     By-law Enforcement 
     Quarterly Activity Report 
     April to June 2014 
 
Resolution No. 2014-143 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
That the Enforcement Activity Report for April 1, 2014 to June 30, 2014 be received for information 
purposes. 

CARRIED. 
 
The Senior Municipal Law Enforcement Officer highlighted the report. 
 
In response to Councillor A. Junker the Senior MLEO and the Fire Chief both confirmed that the fires that 
occurred earlier this year on Peel Street and on Huron Road have not yielded any comments concerning 
Municipal Law Enforcement or have had any further involvement from the Township Fire Department. 
 
The Senior MLEO confirmed for Councillor P. Roe that noise calls are often in relation to large private 
parties in which case the police are called as they occur on weekends or after office hours.  He stated 
that some calls are regarding barking dogs which are usually short in duration. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong responded to Councillor J. Gerber’s questions concerning fires from earlier in 2014 
by stating that some difficulties in communication have occurred concerning the status of fires that have 
involved the Fire Marshal’s Office or the police as the Township required them to expand on the 
responses given. 
 
The Senior MLEO clarified for Councillor J. Gerber that the MOE is currently compiling information 
concerning decibel levels for different industries and different types of noise but currently nothing exists 
with relation to dog kennels specifically. 
 
 
   9.2.4 REPORT NO. CL2014-25 
     Noise By-law Exemption Request 
     Rebecca Turner and Kyle Hillar 
     258 Wilmot Street, New Hamburg 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 7 

Resolution No. 2014-144 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe             Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT an exemption to the Noise By-law as requested by Rebecca Turner and Kyle Hillar at 258 
Wilmot Street in New Hamburg for the purpose of their wedding commencing Friday, August 29, 
2014 at approximately 4:00 p.m. to 12:00 midnight, be granted. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Deputy Clerk highlighted the report. 
 
 

9.3  FINANCE  
 
   9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-21 
     Statement of Operations as of June 30, 2014 (un-audited) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-145 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the Statement of Operations as of June 30, 2014, as prepared by the Manager of 
Accounting, be received for information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Manager of Accounting highlighted the report. 
 
 
   9.3.2 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-22 
     Capital Program Review as of June 30, 2014 (un-audited) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-146 
 
Moved by: A. Junker              Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
That the Capital Program Review as of June 30, 2014, as prepared by the Manager of 
Accounting, be received for information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Manager of Accounting highlighted the report. 
 
In response to Councillor A. Junker, the Director of Public Works advised that the Oxford-Waterloo Bridge 
opened during the last of week and that the Haysville Road works began on June 30 and will last 
approximately six to eight weeks. 
 
The Director of Facilities and Recreation Services confirmed for Councillor A. Junker that the New 
Dundee Library is expected to be ready for occupancy during the last week of August or first week of 
September according to the most recent site meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 8 

9.4  PUBLIC WORKS – no reports 
 
       

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
  
   9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2014-16 
     May – June Building Statistics 
 
Resolution No. 2014-147 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe             Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the May and June 2014 Building Statistics be received for information.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES  
 
   9.6.1 REPORT NO. PRD 2014-10  
     Facilities & Recreation Services Quarterly Activity Reports 
 
Resolution No. 2014-148 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher             Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the Facilities & Recreation Services Quarterly Activity Reports for the second quarter of 
2014 be received for information 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 9.7  FIRE  

 
  9.7.1 REPORT NO. FI 2014-05 
    Quarterly Activity Report 

 
Resolution No. 2014-149 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe             Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the Fire Department Activity Report for the second quarter of 2014 be received for 
information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE  
 
  9.8.1 REPORT NO. CK2014-03 
    Quarterly Activity Report – April, May & June 2014 

 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 9 

Resolution No. 2014-150 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: A. Junker 
 
THAT the Castle Kilbride Activity Report for the months of April, May and June be accepted for 
information purposes. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
The Curator/Director of Castle Kilbride highlighted the report and distributed a promotional post card 
detailing the summer events at the Castle. 
 
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 
11. BY-LAWS  
 
11.1 By-law No. 2014-30, By-law Respecting the Appointment of a Chief Building Official and 

Inspectors  
 
Resolution No. 2014-151 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher             Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-30 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in Open 
Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2014-31 
 
Resolution No. 2014-152 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber             Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-31 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on July 21, 
2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, July 21, 2014 10 

16. ADJOURNMENT (8:06 P.M.) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-153 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher             Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
               Mayor  
 
 
_______________________________  
               Clerk 
 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
Appendix A









dawnm
Typewritten Text
Appendix B









TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2014 
 

CLOSED COUNCIL MEETING 
WILMOT COMMUNITY ROOM 

6:00 P.M. 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
Members Present: Mayor L. Armstrong, Councillors P. Roe, B. Fisher, J. Gerber, M. Murray 
 
Regrets:  Councillor A. Junker 
 
Staff Present: Chief Administrative Officer G. Whittington, Director of Clerk’s Services  

B. McLeod, Deputy Clerk D. Mittelholtz, Director of Facilities and Recreation 
Services S. Nancekivell, Director of Development Services H. O’Krafka, Fire Chief 
M. Raine, Director of Finance R. Tse 

 
 
1. MOTION TO CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Resolution No. 2014-154 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber             Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT a Closed Meeting of Council be held on Monday, August 11, 2014 at  6:00 p.m. in 
accordance with Section 239 (3.1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, for the purposes of: 
 

3.1  1. Education or training of Council members. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
2. MOTION TO RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
 
Resolution No. 2014-155 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe             Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
That we reconvene into Open Session of Council at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers.  
 

CARRIED. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
 
4. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST UNDER THE MUNICIPAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

ACT 
 
None disclosed. 



Special Council Meeting Minutes Monday, August 11, 2014 2 

6. PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Development Charges Study 

 
6.1.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2014-23 
  Development Charges Background Study and By-law 
  Presentation – Dan Wilson, Director, Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

 
Resolution No. 2014-156 
 
Moved by:  B. Fisher            Seconded by:  P. Roe 
 
 
THAT Report FIN 2014-23 regarding the Development Charges Background Study be received for 
information purposes. 
 
 
 
 
Tonight, Council is holding a public meeting under Section 12 of the Development Charges Act, 1997. 
The purpose of the meeting is to give the public an opportunity to ask questions, provide comments, and 
make representations on the 2014 Development Charge Background Study. This study calculates new 
development charges for transportation services, fire protection, parks & recreation, library, 
administration, water and wastewater services. 
 
Persons attending as delegations at this meeting are required to leave their names and addresses which 
will become part of the public record and you are hereby advised that this information may be posted on 
the Township’s official website. 
 
Prior to receiving the public comments, we will ask our consultant, Dan Wilson of Watson & Associates 
Economists Ltd. to do a brief presentation of the findings of the study. 
 
The Director of Finance highlighted the report and introduced Dan Wilson. 
 
Mr. Wilson highlighted the study including the information on the Development Charges process as a 
whole and the methodology behind the study.  His summary included: 
 

 Growth projections 
 Service need projections 
 Capital need projections 
 Summarization of the calculated Development Charges being proposed 
 Summarization of the Development Charges By-law policies being proposed 

 
He concluded his presentation with the next steps in the process and asked if there were any questions. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong advised that having heard all of the comments, this public meeting is now closed. 
Council urges the public to submit their comments in writing by August 18, 2014. Council’s consideration 
of the development charge by-law is scheduled to occur on August 25, 2014. 
 
The CAO advised Councillor J. Gerber that the artificial turf project noted in the study had been included 
in the previous Development Charges Study five years ago.  The Director of Finance further clarified that 
any project that had been identified in the Ten Year Capital Forecast would not be highlighted as a new 
project in the report. 
 



Special Council Meeting Minutes Monday, August 11, 2014 3 

Mayor L. Armstrong concurred with Councillor J. Gerber that discussions concerning the timing of specific 
planned projects would be best suited to occur during the annual budget process and that the Ten Year 
Capital Forecast is a living document subject to change. 
 
The CAO noted that the Facilities Needs Study would be an ideal opportunity for discussion of those 
capital projects as it will be used when formulating future budgets. 
 
The Director of Facilities and Recreation Services clarified for Councillor J. Gerber that estimates for the 
third ice pad project came from the consultant used for the Wilmot Recreation Complex and that the 
location recommendation for the project will be part of the Facilities Needs Study. 
 
The CAO further clarified that the calculations are based on renovations to the New Hamburg Arena as 
the third ice pad.  He stated that this option was used given that this facility is already owned by the 
Township.  If a higher cost option is chosen at a later date then the Development Charges By-law would 
be amended through an addendum.  He concluded by reiterating that the Development Charges 
calculations must be justified and other options for a third ice pad had several variables which could not 
be confirmed at this time. 
 
 
7. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
8. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

8.1 By-law No. 2014-32 
 
Resolution No. 2014-157 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray             Seconded by: J. Gerber 
 
 
THAT By-law No. 2014-32 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on August 11, 
2014 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT (7:35 P.M.) 
 
Resolution No. 2014-158 
 
Moved by: M. Murray              Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
               Mayor  
 
 
_______________________________  
               Clerk 
 



 
 
 

Township of Wilmot 
REPORT 

 
 

 
REPORT NO.  DS 2014-19  
 
TO:   Council  
  
PREPARED BY:    Andrew Martin, Planner/EDO 
 
DATE:    August 25, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Zone Change Application 05/14 

Dennis Kropf / Steelgate Farms Inc. 
   Part of Lot 3, Concession 3, Block A 

1092 Bridge Street 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Zone Change Application 05/14 made by Dennis Kropf / Steelgate Farms Inc., 
affecting Part of Lot 3, Concession 3, Block A not be approved. 
 
Background: 
 

Notice of the Public Meeting was given to property owners within 120 metres of the subject 
lands on July 22, 2014. The following is a summary of comments received prior to the Public 
Meeting. 

 
Public: none 
 
Agencies: 
 
GRCA: no objections 
WRDSB: no comments 
Region of Waterloo: not supportive of approval 
 
Discussion: 
 
The subject lands are designated Agricultural Resource Area in the Township Official Plan, and 
are zoned Zone 1 (Agricultural) with site specific regulations permitting one employee in 
conjunction with a farm-related occupation. 
 
Section 7.1.3 of By-law 83-38, as amended, permits a farm-related occupation as an ancillary 
use to a farm. The zoning was amended in 1990 to permit one employee in conjunction with a 
farm-related occupation. Council approved the zoning amendment and defined a recycling 
depot as “a building or part thereof used for the collection, grading and sorting of materials or 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
7.1



Page 2 of 3 
 

agricultural products, but non including the production, compounding, processing, packaging or 
assembly of raw, semi-processed or fully processed goods, materials or agricultural products”. 
Subsequently a farm related certificate of occupation was issued for the “separation of scrap 
material”. 
 
In October of 2013, the Township received a request to sign a Certificate of Zoning Approval for 
a Salvage Yard or Salvage Shop Licence for Dundee Copper Inc. In November of 2013, the 
Township received correspondence from the business operators describing the operations of 
Dundee Recycling and Dundee Copper. The description of Dundee Recycling did not reflect the 
description of the operation given at the time of the zoning approval. The operation was not 
identified as being secondary to the primary use of the property for farming, farm machinery was 
not listed among the materials brought to the property, and the information provided indicated 
that the operation included 11 individuals, 3 of which live on the property and 8 of which would 
be considered employees. Dundee Copper was described as a distinct and separate business 
operated by an occupant of the property along with one employee involving separation of 
copper wire and receiving e-waste. 
 
Township staff were not able to sign the Certificate of Zoning of Approval for the Salvage Yard 
or Salvage Shop License given the operations as described were not in compliance with the 
zoning of the property. As a result, the Region of Waterloo was unable to grant the requested 
license and also indicated that they would be unable to renew the existing license if the zoning 
infractions were not rectified. 
 
In January of 2014, the applicant was sent a letter by the Township further explaining the zoning 
status of the property and outlining three options to address the zoning infractions as follows: 
legalize the existing operations, revert to the original approval, or relocate the business to an 
industrially zoned property. A copy of this letter is attached for additional background 
information). 
 
The letter explained that legalization of the operation would require, at minimum, an amendment 
to the Regional Official Policies Plan (ROPP), Township of Wilmot Official Plan, and Township 
of Wilmot Zoning By-law as the current operations are not considered a secondary use, 
agriculture-related use, or farm related non-residential use. The letter suggested there would be 
little to no potential for support by the Region of Waterloo of a Regional Plan Amendment. 
 
The second option outlined that Dundee Recycling could operate on the property without the 
necessity to modify the zoning if it were to revert back to the operations approved in 1991. This 
would include at minimum: 
 Demonstrating how the business would be secondary to farming; 
 Documenting the materials received on site and justify that the primary purpose of the 

business is to serve the agricultural community; 
 Demonstrating that all aspects of the operations would occur within an enclosed building 
 Not accepting e-waste to the property; and, 
 Demonstrating that the owner of the business and all individuals working on the property live 

on the property excepting one employee. 
 

The third option discussed was to relocate the business to an industrially zoned property where 
the existing operations would be permitted. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

In March of 2014, a pre-consultation meeting was held with the applicants, the Region of 
Waterloo, and Township staff. The conclusion of that meeting was that in order to legalize 
present operations on the property the applicant would need to file three applications to amend 
the ROPP, Township of Wilmot Official Plan, and Township of Wilmot Zoning By-law. 
 
In May of 2014 this zone change application was filed, proposing to legalize the existing non-
conforming use of the property by removing the limit on the number of permitted employees and 
to allow, independent of a farm operation, a recycling operation for the collection, grading and 
sorting of materials both indoors and outdoors on the property. 
 
The Township Official Plan and ROPP support farm-related non-residential uses, on-farm 
business activities and agriculturally related uses. Policy 5.1.2.2 of the ROPP establishes 
criteria where on-farm business may be considered including, among others, that activities 
remain secondary to farm operations and will not be detrimental to the environment. Policy 3.5.1 
of the Township Official Plan further emphasizes that on-farm businesses are minor activities 
relative to the farming operation to provide for supplementary farm income such that the farm 
remains valued for its agricultural capability 
 
As suggested in earlier correspondence and meetings with the applicant, the Region’s 
comments on this application indicate that based on the applicant’s description of the business 
operations on the subject property, the proposed use does not meet the criteria of an on-farm 
business, an agricultural related use or a farm-related non-residential use. Similarly, the existing 
operations proposed to be legalized do not comply with the comparable policies of the Township 
Official Plan. Further consideration of this application would need to occur concurrently with 
submission of applications to amend the ROP and Township Official Plan. 
 
Strategic Plan Conformity: 
 
Holding public meetings to gain input on planning matters promotes an engaged community. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The application fees, established by the Township of Wilmot Fees and Charges By-law, were 
collected at the time of application. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The operations of Dundee Recycling and Dundee Copper do not comply with the policies of the 
Regional Official Policies Plan or Township Official Plan. The uses are not considered to be that 
of an on-farm business, an agricultural related use, a farm-related non-residential use, or an on-
farm business activity. In this regard, Township staff recommend that the zone change 
application not be approved. 
 
  
 
 
               
Andrew Martin, MCIP RPP     Reviewed by CAO 
Planner/EDO                                                    



 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sent by email and regular mail 
January 8, 2014 
 
Dennis and Maureen Kropf 
1092 Bridge Street 
New Dundee, ON  N0B 2E0 
 
Dear Mr. and Mrs. Kropf: 
 
RE: Dundee Recycling and Dundee Copper 

Zoning Compliance 
 
Thank you for taking the time to provide details with respect to the operations at 1092 Bridge Street.  This 
letter explains the existing zoning regulations applicable to the property and provides an outline of the 
process required to bring the operations into conformity with the zoning by-law. 
 
The following is restated from a letter faxed to you from the Township of Wilmot on December 21, 2006 
 
The present zoning of the property is Zone 1 (Agricultural). Section 7.1.3 of By-law 83-38, as amended, 
permits a farm-related occupation as an ancillary use to a farm. The zoning was amended in 1990 to 
permit one employee in conjunction with a farm-related occupation. Council approved the zoning 
amendment and defined a recycling depot as “a building or part thereof used for the collection, grading 
and sorting of materials or agricultural products, but non including the production, compounding, 
processing, packaging or assembly of raw, semi-processed or fully processed goods, materials or 
agricultural products”. Subsequently a farm related certificate of occupation was issued for the 
“separation of scrap material”. 
 
Dundee Recycling therefore is permitted to operate a recycling depot for the separation of scrap material 
within an enclosed building. Outdoor storage of materials is not permitted. Staffing of the business 
may include individuals who reside on the property in addition to one employee. An automobile wrecking 
yard including the sale of new or used vehicle parts is not a permitted use on the property. 
 
As you are aware, Zone Change Application 8/89 was applied for on April 6, 1989. The application 
originally requested the approval of recycling depot on the property. Comments of the Region of Waterloo 
indicated the use would not comply with the Region of Waterloo Official Plan. The application was then 
revised to request approval of 1 employee in conjunction with a farm related occupation. The revised 
request was considered for approval on March 26, 1990.  The Region of Waterloo was not opposed to the 
revised application to allow 1 employee provided the Township was satisfied that the use fell within the 
definition of a farm related occupation. 
 
The Planning Report prepared in support of the application outlines that the proposed farm related 
recycling depot would be within a fully enclosed building and that no outdoor storage would be 
involved. The report further highlights the types of materials that would be stored, stored, and sold and/or 
recycled off site outlining that a significant portion of the business is agriculturally related. Council 
ultimately approved the application and defined a recycling depot within their resolution. By limiting the 

The Corporation of the 

Township of Wilmot 60 Snyder’s Road West, Baden, Ontario  N3A 1A1 

Development Services Department 
t. 519.634.8444 
f. 519.634.5044 

 
Andrew Martin 

andrew.martin@wilmot.ca 



 

 

use to a farm related occupation to occur within a building with 1 employee, the intent was to ensure the 
use remained small scale and secondary to agricultural use of the property. 
 
On May 14, 1991, a Certificate of Occupancy for a Farm Related Occupation was issued for the 
Separation of Scrap Material. The regulations contained within the Township’s Zoning By-law 83-38 at 
that time for a farm related occupation are unchanged from the current regulations and are as follows: 
 
6.21 Regulations for Farm-Related Occupations 
 

In any zone where a farm-related occupation is a permitted use, such occupation shall be established only in 
conformity with the following: 
 
6.21.1 All building, structures, storage, parking and loading areas used in connection with a farm-

related occupation shall not occupy a lot area 0.2 hectares. 
 
6.21.2 The farm occupation shall be for the exclusive use of the occupant of the farm to which it 

is an ancillary use, and there shall be no employees operating in or from the premises at 
any time. [This section was amended site specifically in 1990 to allow for 1 employee] 

 
6.21.3 No farm-related occupation shall be permitted until a Certificate of Occupancy has been 

issued by the Township.  No change in use shall be made without the issuance of a new 
Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
6.21.4 Any building or structure erected or used in connection with a farm-related occupation 

shall be located to the rear of the building line or lines established by this By-law and in no 
case closer to the road than the wall of the existing building closest to the road. 

 
6.21.5 Specific uses permitted as a farm-related occupation, shall include those manufacturing, 

fabricating, assembly, storage or repair enterprises, and/or those retail, wholesale or 
service enterprises which conform to the definition of a “Farm-Related Occupation” 
contained in this By-law, except that the following uses are specifically prohibited: 

 
(a) a use designated as an offensive trade, business or manufacture by The Public 

Health Act, R.S.O. 1980 and amendments thereto; 
 
(b) a use which is or may become obnoxious, offensive or dangerous by reasons of 

the presence, emissions or production in any manner or odour, dust, smoke, 
noise, fumes, vibration, refuse matter or water carried wastes; 

 
(c) a use which would require for its operation a standard of services (particularly 

water supply and waste disposal) which the municipality is unable or unwilling to 
provide; 

 
(d) the recycling of animal products or a rendering plant; 
 
(e) the recycling or refining of petroleum products; 
 
(f) a junk, scrap, salvage or wrecking yard. 

 
 [In 1990, Council clarified that, if a recycling depot was located entirely within an enclosed 

building it would not be considered a junk, scrap, salvage or wrecking yard. Council added 
the following definition of a recycling depot: “a building or part thereof used for the 
collection, grading and sorting of materials or agricultural products, but non including the 
production, compounding, processing, packaging or assembly of raw, semi-processed or 
fully processed goods, materials or agricultural product”]. 

 
A Farm Related Occupation is defined in the Township’s Zoning By-law 83-28 as “a trade, occupation or 
service which is oriented primarily toward the needs of the agricultural community and which is located on a parcel of 
land having an area of not less than 35 hectares as a use clearly secondary to the main use of farming”. 
 



 

 

The Certificate of Occupancy clearly states that the certificate is for the specified use only (separation of 
scrap material) and that any change in use would require a prior approval of a new certificate. 
 
In October of 2013, the Township received a request to sign a Certificate of Zoning Approval for Salvage 
Yard or Salvage Shop Licence for Dundee Copper Inc. The operator of this business was identified as 
Michael Kropf. Township staff informed Michael that the Township would be unable to sign the certificate 
to indicate the use complied with the zoning. Further discussions occurred with Michael, Dennis and 
Maureen explaining that the scale of the business on the site appears to have grown beyond the initial 
approval. Staff indicated that if the Township was provided a detailed description of what was currently 
occurring and what was the future plans for the property were, that a detailed response could be provided 
on the options and potential to legalize the operation in its existing and potential future form. 
 
On November 8, 9, and 21 2013 I received emails describing the operations of Dundee Recycling and 
Dundee Copper. The description of Dundee Recycling provided does not reflect the description of the 
operation given at the time of the zoning approval. There is no mention of the operation being secondary 
to the primary use of the property for farming, farm machinery is not listed among the materials brought to 
the property, and the operation includes 11 individuals, 3 of which live on the property and 8 of which 
would be considered employees (anyone not living on the property whether family or not is considered an 
employee). It is also my understanding from speaking with Dennis, owner and president of the company, 
that he does not live at the property. 
 
Your email indicates that Dundee Copper is a distinct and separate business operated by Michael Kropf 
(who lives on the property) and one employee.  The use involves separating copper wire and receiving e-
waste. 
 
The following is aerial imagery showing the progression of the operations at 1092 Bridge Street from 
1995 to 2012. 
 
1995 

 



 

 

2000 

 
2006 

 



 

 

2010 

 
 
2012 

 



 

 

 
The operations of Dundee Recycling and recently Dundee Copper have clearly grown beyond the original 
approval of the separation of scrap metal within an enclosed building as part of a farm related occupation. 
Uses described for the property and as illustrated in the aerial imagery do not comply with the Township 
Zoning By-law as they fall well beyond the intent of a farm related occupation and, through the 
introduction of outdoor sorting and storage, no longer comply with the definition of a recycling depot. 
 
At this time you have three options to address the zoning infraction, legalize the existing operations, 
revert to the original approval, or relocate the business to an industrially zoned property. 
 
Legalization of the operation would require, at minimum, an amendment to the Region of Waterloo Official 
Plan, Township of Wilmot Official Plan, and Township of Wilmot Zoning By-law as the current operations 
are not considered a secondary use, agriculture-related use, or farm related non-residential use. The 
current cost of a Regional Plan amendment is $11,000. A subsequent application to amend the Township 
Official Plan would be $3000 plus an additional fee to the Region of Waterloo of $5000 for approval. 
Based on past proposals to establish and/or legalize non agriculturally related operations within a Prime 
Agricultural area, the expectation is that there would be little to no potential for support of a Regional Plan 
Amendment. 
 
As I stated in my original email, Dundee Recycling could operate on the property without the necessity to 
modify the zoning if it were to revert back to the operations approved in 1991. This would include at 
minimum: 

 Demonstrate how the business would be secondary to farming 
 Document the materials received on site and justify that the primary purpose of the business is to 

serve the agricultural community 
 Demonstrate that all aspects of the operations would occur within an enclosed building 
 Not accept e-waste to the property 
 Demonstrate that the owner of the business and all individuals working on the property live on the 

property excepting one employee 
 
The remaining option would be to relocate the business to an industrially zoned property where the 
existing operations would be permitted. Township staff would be willing to work with you to facilitate this 
relocation by providing a list of properties that would be properly zoned. 
 
In an effort to allow time to examine your options, you are requested to proceed in one of the directions 
outlined above and bring your property into conformity with the Township Zoning By-law on or before 
June 30, 2014. 
 
If you have questions regarding policies of the Region of Waterloo please contact Jane Gurney at the 
Region of Waterloo: 519.575.4500 x 3454. If you have any other questions, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Andrew Martin, MCIP RPP 
Planner/EDO 
 
cc: Les Armstrong, Mayor 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.1.1















Page 8 of 29 
 

Attachment 1-WREDS Advisory Committee Membership 
 
Bruce Gordon  Chairman  Manulife Canada, Manulife Bank, Manulife 

Trust  
 
Carol Leaman  President & CEO   Axonify  
 
Carol Simpson  Executive Director  Workforce Planning Board of Waterloo 

Wellington Dufferin  
 
Craig Beattie   Partner    Perimeter Development Corporation  
 
Ed Roberts   President    Conestoga-Rovers & Associates (CRA)  
 
Gerry Remers  President & COO   Christie Digital Systems Canada, Inc.  
 
Greg Durocher  President & CEO   Cambridge Chamber of Commerce  
 
Ian McLean   President/CEO   Greater Kitchener Waterloo Chamber of  
       Commerce  
 
Iain Klugman   President & CEO   Communitech  
 
Kevin Martin   President    Martin’s Family Fruit Farm  
 
Malcolm Matheson  President    Steed and Evans Limited  
 
Mark Derro   Dean     Conestoga College  
 
Mary D’Alton   President & Managing  Waterloo Inn and Conference Hotel  
   Director   
 
Michael Duschenes  Chief Operating   Perimeter Institute  
       Officer   
 
Michael Pley   Chief Executive   COM DEV International Ltd.  
       Officer   
 
Tim Jackson   Senior Advisor   MaRS Centre for Impact Investing 
  



Page 9 o
 

Attachme

 
MEMORA

TO:  

FROM:  

DATE:  

SUBJEC

This mem
by Malon
Technolo
the man
commen
 
It should
geograph
eight mu
region.  
 
1. Introd

Strategy 
a winnin
achieve a
 
Waterloo
history a
the comm
advantag
far more
entities e
form alig
directions
 
As politic
and reso
context. 
coherenc
developm
overall e
geograph

of 29 

ent 2 – Memo

ANDUM 

Water

Lee P

July 8

CT An ou
Strate

morandum p
ne Given Pa
ogy Triangle
ny stakehold
ts by the pu

d be stress
hy of Water
nicipalities t

duction - a S
is about ma
g aspiration
a common v

o Region, lik
nd shared v
munities, peo
ge, risk mitig
e complex. 
each with the
gnment of th
s – but only 

cally distinct
ources, diffe
However, a

ce ultimatel
ment strateg
ecosystem 
hies and e

o: Outline of 

rloo Region 

Parsons (lpar

8, 2014 

utline of the 
egic Direction

provides an 
arsons Ltd. (
 Inc. (CTT), 
ders who 
blic.  

sed that thi
loo Region. 
to achieve th

Strategy for
aking the cho
n. Strategy 
vision that be

ke all econom
values result
ople, and or

gation and p
The geogra
eir own visio
he means an
to a point.  

t geographie
erence and 
as the eco
y come to 
y is where h
and as lon

external ent

the WREDS S

Area Munici

rsons@mgp

Waterloo Re
ns 

overview of
MGP), the S
senior econ
participated 

s Economic
It is intende

he common 

r Waterloo 
oices and ca
is about co

enefits all.  

mic regions,
ts in an inev
ganizations.
rofit maximiz

aphy encom
ons and strat
nd ends of 

es grow and
political riva
nomic regio

outweigh 
history and d
ng as it he
tities rather

Strategic Dire

ipal Councils

p.ca) 

egion Econo

f the Strateg
Steering Com
nomic develo

in the ec

c Developm
ed, in part, a
purpose of 

Region  
arrying out th
oordinating a

 is a comple
vitable partne
. Unlike a co
zation are p

mpasses ma
tegies, all of
strategy. Po

 press on e
alries can e
on grows, t
the legacy 

diversity are 
elps to focu
r than be 

ections 

s 

omic Develo

gic Direction
mmittee, Ad
opment staff
conomic dev

ment Strateg
as a means
ensuring the

he actions th
and amplify

ex ecosyste
ership and c
orporate enti
rimary objec

any corporat
f which defy 
olitical neces

each other a
easily becom
the benefits

differentiat
celebrated 

us competit
diverted to

opment Stra

ns that have 
dvisory Com
f from all eig
velopment 

gy encompa
s of aligning
e continued 

hat are nece
ying the act

em where sh
common cau
ty where gro
ctives, an ec
te, institutio
 simple atte
ssity helps 

and compete
me fault lin
s of politica
tion and hi
as long as i
tive energie
o unproduc

tegy (WRED

been devel
mittee, Cana

ght municipa
workshops, 

asses the e
 the efforts 
prosperity o

essary to ac
tions of man

hared geogra
use, among 
owth, compe
conomic reg
onal and po
mpts to crea
to align stra

e for jobs, pe
es in a reg

al alignment
story. Econ
t strengthen

es against 
ctive interne

DS) – 

loped 
ada’s 

alities, 
and 

entire 
of all 

of the 

hieve 
ny to 

aphy, 
all of 

etitive 
ion is 

olitical 
ate or 
ategic 

eople 
gional 
t and 
nomic 
ns the 
other 
ecine 



Page 10 of 29 
 

competition that weakens the whole region as well as individual parts.  
 
Strategy therefore explicitly recognizes the essential imperative for cooperation, making 
common choices, and embarking on actions that will strengthen the economic region. Strategy 
articulates the collective value proposition to which all are committed.  
 
Strategy is about shared priorities, collective choices, and the alignment of actions that are 
necessary to improve the economy and ensure a continually improving quality of life that 
celebrates uniqueness and diversity within a common cause.  
 
Waterloo Region faces the opportunities and challenges of success. The region is well 
recognized for its history of hard work, collaboration, innovation, and entrepreneurship. This 
lens has focused the efforts of companies, educational institutions, local municipalities and the 
people of Waterloo Region. Waterloo Region is not at a crossroads or an inflection point that 
calls for a radical change. However, it faces competitive challenges that require a renewed 
consensus on its economic future and to ensure that Waterloo Region stays on the leading 
edge.  
 
2. WREDS Process & Approach  

 
The Process  
The Region of Waterloo, together with the 7 Area Municipalities, engaged Malone Given 
Parsons Ltd. (MGP) to undertake the development of a new Regional Economic Development 
Strategy. The project follows a regional economic development study completed by MGP in 
April, 2013 and is being led by a Steering Committee comprised of the CAOs of the 8 
Municipalities, and the CEO of CTT.  
 
The Strategy has been structured as a four phase approach that is built around a 
comprehensive economic development and business community stakeholder engagement 
program, designed to be focused, efficient, effective and motivating:  
 

1. Foundations, facts and analysis;  
2. Strategic Directions – Vision, Goals and Objectives;  
3. Actions;  
4. Strategy Document and Approval.  

 
The Strategy process is designed to address short to long term priorities, to address the need 
for measuring progress, and to identify partnerships and resources required for the Strategy’s 
implementation. The resulting Strategy will serve as a cohesive strategic framework that is both 
inspirational and practical, it will become a document from which Area Municipalities and 
economic development partners can develop and update their individual economic development 
strategies where required.  
 
A Consultative Approach  
The Consultant and Steering Committee recognized the wealth of knowledge, expertise and 
commitment to regional economic growth that exists among the business community and 
economic development partners across Waterloo Region. As such the approach to the 
development of the Strategy has and continues to have a strong emphasis on consultation. The 
result is a Strategy that mirrors the strengths, issues and aspirations that exist within the region. 
The Strategy is a document that has clear goals, objectives and actions that have been created 
by the many participants involved. It is this broad consultative approach that will be the 



Page 11 of 29 
 

foundation to ensuring that there is buy-in to the Strategy.  
 
A voluntary Advisory Committee was established, comprised of individuals who are 
knowledgeable regarding the local economy, to provide:  
 

 Comments, interpretation and information on Strategic Directions & Actions to 
ensure that the Steering Committee and Consulting Team are considering all issues 
and that they are appropriate;  

 An external perspective on opportunities for Waterloo Region within the global 
context; and,  

 Strategic advice and guidance to the project team, Steering Committee and Regional 
and Area Municipal Councils via the Steering Committee.  

 
The Advisory Committee have been consulted with and engaged throughout the process and 
have added significantly to the development of the Strategic Directions. More importantly, their 
involvement and support of the process and outcomes to-date are reassurance that the adopted 
approach has been successful in engaging the private sector. This will lead the way to a 
continued strengthening of collaboration between the private and public sectors in terms of 
economic development related activities.  
 
The CTT Board has been actively involved and has made many salient contributions to the 
definition of the strategic directions, and has provided input on the importance of foreign direct 
investment. The CTT Board has also provided advice on emerging economic opportunities and 
strategic priorities.  
 
A series of nine Stakeholder Workshops were facilitated in February 2014: to inform 
stakeholders of the process and objectives; to discuss the needs, barriers and areas of priority 
for each area of economic interest; to mobilize ideas; and to create a basis of support and 
consensus around the new Regional Economic Development Strategy.  
 
A number of major themes emerged from that process:  
 

 The challenges and importance of attracting and retaining talent in Waterloo Region;  
 The need to support existing companies and Small and Medium Enterprises to grow 

and prosper;  
 The importance of business attraction and Foreign Direct Investment;  
 The desire and necessity to improve collaboration and coordination;  
 The requirement for an organizational framework for regional economic 

development;  
 Waterloo Region – A hub of innovation and entrepreneurship;  
 The unique urban rural dynamic of the region;  
 Confused branding/messaging;  
 Excellent educational institutions, providing a pool of talented people;  
 A strengthening arts, culture, and tourism sector that requires support;  
 The importance of the urban domain; and  
 The need to ensure that municipal policies are aligned with and supportive of 

economic development.  
 

Regional and Municipal Councils, the CTT board, municipal staff and industry experts, and the 
public have also been engaged as part of an ongoing consultation process. Municipal economic 



Page 12 of 29 
 

development officers and staff have played a significant role in reviewing and revising the 
proposed Actions in particular. A project website was created and an Open House session was 
held in May 2014 to provide the public with an opportunity to become aware of and engage in 
the process.  
 
3. Context for WREDS  

The Phase 1 Foundations Report provided research for a fact based exercise that defined 
the context for economic growth for Waterloo Region. The Foundations Report provided an 
overview of the salient economic conditions in Waterloo Region.  
 
There are three main conclusions that were drawn from Phase 1 are:  
 

1.  Waterloo Region is strong.  
The region has long had a successful economy that has grown and prospered by 
combining a strong educational and research system with the innovative, collaborative, 
and entrepreneurial ethic. This has stimulated strong and diverse companies in the 
information communication and technology sectors and in advanced manufacturing and 
financial services. Many companies and institutions have a global reach and 
perspective. These strong sectors are also consistent with an evident competitive 
advantage in the global value chain. These advantages are supported by a high quality 
of life and distinctive regional character. 
  

2. However, Waterloo Region’s economic context is changing. The regional GDP 
growth is expected to slow over the short term, and to be exceeded by other Canadian 
and Ontario cities. While Waterloo Region has enviable success, a strong economic 
base, and an attractive location, other areas within the Greater Golden Horseshoe and 
elsewhere are competing for the same growth sectors that are represented in Waterloo 
Region.  

 
3. But Waterloo Region can and must respond to the challenge. All of the elements 

that make the region a powerful economic location are available to attract people, ideas, 
capital, jobs, and success. What is required is an assertive, focused, proactive 
deployment of these assets to meet the challenge and to ensure a sustainable, high 
performance region.  

 
The Case for a Regional Economic Development Strategy  

1. “Change before you have to” – Jack Welch. Waterloo Region can’t rest on its laurels – it 
needs to aggressively respond to new opportunities and threats.  
 

2. Waterloo Region is strong in ICT and Advanced Manufacturing but other cities and 
regions within the GGH and elsewhere are targeting the same sectors. None of these 
locations have exactly the same strengths as Waterloo Region, but some have other 
strengths (e.g. Markham, Mississauga, Toronto)  

 
3. The growth of the region, and expansion of available services, facilities, recreational, 

entertainment and cultural opportunities, is important in order to keep the talent pool in 
Waterloo Region and to attract new talent. 

  
4. Economic Development as currently delivered in Waterloo Region is not as strategic or 

as focused as it should be.  
 



Page 13 of 29 
 

5. Although the mantra is collaboration, and the folklore is barn-raising, the reality is that 
the layers of government make economic development activities challenging to 
manage, coordinate and deliver.  

 
6. As the direct competitive influence of the GTA becomes more pronounced, Waterloo 

Region needs to be proactive, not reactive.  
 
4. WREDS – The Strategic Framework  

The Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy will:  
 

 Define a region-wide focus for economic development;  
 Address short to long term priorities;  
 Identify partners and resources required for the Strategy’s implementation;  
 Develop techniques for measuring progress; and  
 Provide a strategic framework from which the Region, Area Municipalities and other 

partners can develop and update their individual strategies.  
 
There are five components of the strategy:  
 

 First a Vision Statement that best reflects the collective winning aspiration of 
Waterloo Region’s eight municipalities, institutions, and private companies.  

 Second, a set of Strategic Goals that provide direction to the Economic Development 
Strategy and which broadly define the essential priorities.  

 Third, the Strategic Objectives that need to be achieved to move toward the strategic 
goals  

 Fourth, a defined suite of key Actions that is required to achieve the Objectives and 
Strategic Goals.  

 Finally, a road map for activating and implementing the WREDS.  
 
5. Strategic Directions -The Vision Statement  

The development of the Vision Statement, Strategic Goals and Objectives has been the result of 
an extensive and comprehensive consultative approach that included:  
 

 9 sectoral stakeholder workshops, with over 120 participants;  
 Regular consultation with the newly establishment Advisory Committee;  
 Input from the project Steering Committee;  
 Consultation and input from the board of CTT;  
 Two meetings of the joined Regional and Municipal Councils;  
 3 facilitated workshops with municipal staff and economic development practitioners;  
 An Open House session;  
 The development, maintenance and monitoring of a project website, which provided 

the opportunity for participation and feedback through a feedback form; and  
 A number of meetings with private business owners.  

 
The Vision Statement  
The purpose of a Vision Statement is to present a concise description of the motivating 
aspiration for Waterloo Region’s economy. This vision not only describes a strategic direction, 
but also reflects the inherent strengths that differentiate Waterloo Region from other regional 
economies.  
 



Page 14 of 29 
 

Over the course of consultation with many stakeholders in Waterloo Region, there were 
common themes that emerged in various contexts. These themes included:  
 

 A tradition of collaborative efforts  
 A tradition of innovation and entrepreneurship  
 Diversity of philosophy, talent, civic tradition.  

 
As a result of this process, the Vision Statement was defined and has received 
wide acceptance.  
 
“To be Locally Rooted, Internationally Competitive, and Globally Renowned”  

 
 Locally Rooted – to respect, celebrate, and grow from the region’s historical roots 

as an industrious, entrepreneurial, creative, collaborative, problem solving 
community.  
 
The residents of Waterloo Region are rightfully proud of its tradition of collaboration, 
innovation, entrepreneurship, and resilience. Waterloo Region has a tradition of 
economic success that is based on these traditions. Its future is rooted in these long 
established values.  
 

 Internationally Competitive – to build on and complement the strong economic 
sectors within Waterloo Region.  
 
Waterloo Region is not only locally rooted, but also outward looking. Its companies 
and institutions play in an international field and are successful because their ideas, 
services and products compete successfully. Waterloo Region is mindful that it is 
essential to continually improve its competitive edge as a place to live and to locate 
business. Being innovative, entrepreneurial and internationally competitive brings 
global awareness of Waterloo Region. The global brand of Waterloo Region is being 
continually enhanced through the development of international relationships.  
 

 Globally Renowned – to become a region with instant recognition, synonymous with 
excellence, a desired location with world-class attributes.  
 
The vision statement reflects a positive and proactive aspiration to enhance Waterloo 
Region’s global reputation, to focus on and communicate its competitive advantage, 
to always remember that sustainable success begins at home and is rooted in the 
values and hard work that have always made the region internationally competitive 
and globally renowned. 

  
6. Strategic Directions -Goals and Objectives  

Four Strategic Goals have been identified that are the guiding principles to fulfilling the Vision 
for Waterloo Region. Each Goal is supported by a specific set of objectives.  
 
Goal 1: To be the premier location for innovation and entrepreneurship.  
Waterloo Region has a strong successful economy that has been built on a tradition of 
innovation and entrepreneurship. A number of sectors including the information, communication 
and technology sector, advanced manufacturing and financial services sectors have excelled as 
a result. The combination of new ideas and new technologies to form new products and 



Page 15 of 29 
 

services has been a fundamental generator of economic success for Waterloo Region. The new 
strategy for expanding the economy must include a strong and continued commitment to being 
a high performance region which is on the cutting edge for creating and deploying new 
technologies. This strategic goal is realized by achieving the following objectives.  
 
Goal 1: Objectives  
1.1  To continue to expand the universities and college role in innovation 

and entrepreneurship.  
1.2  To strengthen the culture of innovation within existing businesses and organizations.  
1.3  To attract new high quality, promising, innovative organizations and businesses.  
1.4  To establish aggressive targets for expanding existing business, attracting 

new businesses, and start-ups.  
1.5  To promote international recognition as a world class community.  
 
Goal 2: To be the most competitive location for new and expanding companies 
and institutions.  
Waterloo Region needs to continually sharpen its competitive edge in order to be the most 
appealing region for attracting and retaining companies and institutions. It must continue to be a 
fertile ground for creative institutions and profitable enterprise. This means ensuring that the 
inputs that are essential for each type of organization are available at higher quality and at  
appropriate cost. This means land and locations are available, that a talented and dedicated 
labour force is available. This means proactive and effective decision making and a “can-do” 
philosophy within the local private and public sectors.  
 
The set of criteria sought by different companies and institutions will be very different from one 
to the other. In order to become the most competitive location, the challenge for Waterloo 
Region is to identify these deciding factors and to outperform other regions on as many of them 
as possible as guided by the strategic goals.  
 
Crucial to achieving this will be a new regional approach to business retention and attraction, 
and an easy and professional path though the bureaucratic system. It will require the provision 
of readily available employment land, excellent infrastructure and transportation system, 
available talent, and diverse cultural, entertainment and recreational opportunities. 
  
Goal 2: Objectives  
2.1  To communicate a compelling value proposition to foreign and domestic companies 

and institutions.  
2.2  To ensure that a continuous supply of diverse locations are always immediately 

available for new businesses, and to support the retention of existing businesses.  
2.3  To ensure competitive costs of location, attracting talent, and doing business.  
2.4  To make full use of all relevant programs available from other levels of government.  
2.5  To ensure fast and effective municipal decision making.  
2.6  To create the most efficient transportation system to link people to companies 

and institutions.  
2.7  To ensure that all local infrastructure is sufficient to meet the needs of the region.  
 
Goal 3: To be a resilient, engaged, and dynamic economic ecosystem.  
Waterloo Region’s economic ecosystem is dynamic and encompasses many themes and 
mutually supportive components that thrive together with the unique environment of innovation 
and entrepreneurship.  
 



Page 16 of 29 
 

One of the components is the high growth technology sector where the barriers to entry can be 
low, the rewards can be sustainable, yet there is an inherent volatility. The high growth 
technology sector often leads the economic narrative and image of Waterloo Region.  
 
The regional economic ecosystem also includes the stalwart sectors such as manufacturing. 
Unlike other regions in Canada, manufacturing still represents the single largest source of 
employment.  
 
Another stalwart is the financial sector, which has been long established and continues to thrive 
even as new technology is changing the nature of the sector’s organizations. These high growth 
traditional sustaining sectors are supported by a full spectrum of personal service, business 
service, and government.  
 
The educational institutions and the research organizations are not only generators of 
innovation and talent; they are also major employers in their own right, and play a significant 
role in positioning Waterloo Region on the global stage. As they expand their academic and 
research programs, they stimulate local employment and productivity, and build on the region’s 
reputation for education and research. It is also fitting that education and research are 
embedded in one of Waterloo Region’s four economic goals given that investment in research 
and innovation is one of the strategic actions outlined in the Government of Canada’s Economic 
Action Plan 2013.  
 
Agricultural production and food processing are also a defining component of the regional 
economic ecosystem. While the supply of agricultural land is finite, the area remains an 
important location for agricultural and food processing industries.  
 
The WREDS must focus on ensuring that this economic ecosystem remains resilient, dynamic 
and mutually supportive.  
 
Goal 3: Objectives  
3.1  To support and stimulate new and existing high growth sectors.  
3.2  To support and stimulate strong traditional employment sectors.  
3.3  To ensure robust service sectors that support a healthy, growing economy.  
3.4  To nurture small and medium sized enterprise (SME).  
3.5  To leverage the region’s post-secondary institutions to the fullest extent.  
3.6  To support the continued expansion of the agriculture and agri-food sectors.  
 
Goal 4: To be a community of choice for talented people.  
Economic growth and sustainability is all about the people who continue to choose Waterloo 
region as a place to live, learn, work, and have families. It is the sense of place, of history, of 
having a unique character that is the bedrock to Waterloo Region. It is the culture of creative 
and diverse “do-ers” that seek a high quality of life in a unique multifaceted environment that is 
at once big city, urban, small town, rural, and university town.  
 
Goal 4 explicitly recognizes the need to continue to nurture the quality of life and unique 
character of Waterloo Region that attracts people and organizations.  
 
Goal 4: Objectives  
4.1  To become recognized as a major location for art and culture.  
4.2  To create a green, sustainable, efficient region that promotes and facilitates growth.  
4.3  To ensure an appropriate mix of housing that reflects the needs and aspirations of current 



Page 17 of 29 
 

and future residents.  
4.4  To promote and support excellent education.  
4.5  To support excellent healthcare and supporting organizations.  
4.6  To enhance the unique sense of place and maintain the urban and rural qualities.  
4.7  To support a dynamic and caring not-for-profit sector.  
 
7. Defining the Actions  

The Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy will require specific Actions to achieve 
the Strategic Direction. The final set of Actions will ultimately become the work plan for the new 
Waterloo Region Economic Development Corporation in partnership with the eight 
municipalities, the institutions and corporate organizations. 
  
A preliminary set of Actions have been defined through workshops and discussions with 
economic development staff and practitioners from within Waterloo Region.  
 
The preliminary Actions can be found on the WREDS project website (www.wreds.ca). The 
Actions should be considered as a “work in progress”, which illustrate the proposed approach to 
implementing the Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy.  
  



Page 18 of 29 
 

Attachment 3 – Developing a New Organization for Regional Economic Development  
 
1. Background  
 
In 2012, the Region of Waterloo and all seven Area Municipalities commenced a study entitled 
the “Waterloo Region Economic Development Study: Assessment of Economic Development 
Services and the Provision of Employment Lands” to examine both the municipal delivery of 
economic development services and issues around the adequate supply of employment lands. 
This study acknowledged there were a wide variety of activities across the region that support 
economic development. However, the report also recognized that a more coordinated approach 
to economic development in the Waterloo Region was required. The results of this study were 
presented at an All Council meeting and were subsequently endorsed by each of the municipal 
councils throughout 2013.  

Several action items resulted from this study, including:  
 

 The creation of a Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy (currently in 
progress);  

 The creation of a new Region of Waterloo Office of Economic Development (complete);  
 A Request to amend the Municipal Act, 2001 to allow for regional participation in  
 employment land development (request made to Province); 
 Completion of the East Side Master Environmental Servicing Plan (MESP) to advance 

the development of employment lands (complete); and  
 The evaluation of options for a new Waterloo Region Economic Development 

Corporation (subject of this memo).  
 
Throughout the early part of 2014, the Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy 
Steering Committee (consisting of the municipal CAOs in Waterloo Region and the CEO of CTT 
Inc.) evaluated options in order to identify a recommended structure and governance model for 
a new Waterloo Region Economic Development Corporation (WREDC). In addition, there has 
been good progress on identifying and clarifying the respective roles and responsibilities of the 
new WREDC, the Region of Waterloo and all seven area municipalities.  
 
The purpose of this memo is to summarize the recommendations that the Steering 
Committee has developed to date, to highlight issues that still require consideration, and 
to identify expected next steps.  

Despite many strengths, there are a number of weaknesses in the current economic development framewo
not fully meeting the needs of the regional economy:  

 Absence of a regional approach to economic development;  
 A gap in available data;  
 Inconsistent marketing approach;  
 A lack of resources, particularly in the rural municipalities;  
 Trust issues; and,  
 An unclear understanding of stakeholder involvement in economic development.  

 
From Waterloo Region Economic Development Study:  
Assessment of Economic Development Services and the Provision of Employment Lands (2013)  
 



Page 19 of 29 
 

2. Structure and Governance  
 
a) Structure  
 
In creating a new Regional Economic Development entity, three alternative approaches to the 
structure of the new organization were considered:  
 

1. An arms-length Economic Development Corporation;  
2. An arms-length Public –Private Partnership; and  
3. An arms-length Regional Development Authority.  

 
The rationale for creating an arms-length entity has the following benefits:  
 

 Considered a more “apolitical” mandate;  
 Less bureaucracy in terms of program delivery and decision making;  
 Greater opportunity to attract key community leadership across many sectors to the 

Board and staff;  
 Greater opportunity to develop partnerships and bundle government programs to 

achieve an end;  
 Greater opportunity to be considered regional in scope and actions;  
 Board Chair and/or CEO have the ability to speak on behalf of the organization and to 

represent regional thought on pertinent or potentially divisive issues; and  
 Ability to be an advocate with all levels of government.  

 
A Public-Private Partnership model was reviewed, but found less desirable, particularly since 
stakeholders and funders give up direct control, and priorities may diverge.  
 
A Regional Development authority model was also reviewed, but not a desirable fit, primarily 
due to the structure being outside the direct purview of any level of government, particularly 
the shareholders.  
 
Regional Economic Development Corporation (Recommended) Based on the review of several 
options, it is recommended that a new Waterloo Region Economic Development Corporation 
(WREDC) be established. There are several benefits to this approach, including that the new 
entity would provide:  
 

 An expanded mandate for economic development on a region-wide basis;  
 A mechanism to address some of the gaps and challenges that have been identified with 

the current economic development framework;  
 One primary point of contact for regional scale economic development activities;  
 An opportunity to align and coordinate region-wide strategic directions, objectives,  
 resources and initiatives; and  
 A role in supporting and strengthening collaboration and communication with all 

stakeholders.  
 

In addition, an independent or arms-length regional economic development corporation is a 
model that is widely used in a Canadian context. Its history goes back several decades, and 
there have been refinements and adjustments to suit local conditions. The main features of this 
type of organization are:  
 



Page 20 of 29 
 

 "Arms-length", not-for-profit corporation;  
 Accountable to key "shareholders" (primarily the Region and Area Municipalities);  
 Governed by a Board of Directors (responsible for oversight and direction, including 

hiring and management of CEO);  
 Reports progress on deliverables to the stakeholders on an agreed upon, usually 

annual, timeframe.  
 
There are a number of examples of Regional Economic Development Corporations that can be 
referenced. For an example of these, please see Attachments A and B.  
 
b) Governance  
 
Establishing a relevant and sustainable governance model will be critical to the overall success 
and effectiveness of a new Waterloo Regional Economic Development Corporation (WREDC). 
The primary shareholders of the new WREDC will be the Region and the Area Municipalities, as 
they are expected to be the principal funders.  
 
The proposed governance structure outlined below is based on the typical approach employed 
by many other Economic Development Corporations. It includes a number of supporting 
groups, all with specific mandates and roles but led by the Board of Directors.  
 
WREDC Board of Directors: A Skills-Based Model (Recommended)  
 
The Board of Directors is the primary oversight provider for the organization. While it will seek 
valuable input and insights from the funding partners, possibly from one or more Advisory 
Committees and the greater community, it holds the responsibility for ensuring best practices in 
terms of governance. The Board functions would include direction setting, strategic planning, 
monitoring performance, financial oversight, hiring of the CEO and empowering and holding the 
CEO accountable for achieving desired results.  
 
A Board size of 9 to 12 members is felt to be a workable number and is recommended.  
 
It is also recommended that the Board be a “skills-based” board, rather than a board that 
includes representatives from specific organizations, or individuals who hold specific positions. 
It will be important to ensure that the Board has:  
 

 An appropriate range and mix of skills;  
 Individuals from a cross-section of various sectors of the Region’s economy;  
 Individuals from a variety of geographic areas/municipalities within the Region.  

 
Given these broad criteria, it is anticipated that the majority of the Board members will be 
individuals working in the private sector.  
 
A skills-based Board has the greatest ability to be a high functioning Board. Developing the 
criteria regarding desired skill sets will be important, but there are several skills that would 
typically stand out. Having members with specific strengths in the understanding and 
operations of finance, marketing, law, governance, and business development would be a few 
of these skills. In the end, it is important to have people with the following attributes as well:  
 

 Be recognized as a leader within their profession or industry, and by extension a 



Page 21 of 29 
 

“community leader”;  
 Have a strong understanding and experience in and on Boards of Directors;  
 Have a strong understanding of the Waterloo Region; its economy, its strengths and 

challenges and an ability to be a critical thinker in terms of approaches to raise the 
region’s economy and profile;  

 Be a team player; and  
 Be a consensus builder.  

 
Ultimately, the skills, experience, contacts and attitude/approach of the board members will be 
critical to the organizations success. This will be more important than the organization or 
sector that they work within and the specific community within the region that they live or work 
in. Ideally, there will be a Board that is a good representation of the region’s geography, and its 
sectors, but key is finding the people with the critical skill sets.  
 
Steering Committee (Economic Development Implementation Committee)  
 
A Steering Committee of the municipal CAOs and the CEO of CTT has been established in 
order to provide direction and oversight to the Waterloo Region Economic Development 
Strategy (WREDS), currently underway. This group is responsible for bringing any resulting 
recommendations to their respective Councils for direction and carry through, and it should be 
maintained in some form.  
 
Building on the existing framework, it may be appropriate that this Steering Committee evolve 
into the Economic Development Implementation Committee for the creation of the new Regional 
Economic Development Corporation. Key responsibilities could include:  
 

 Developing skills criteria for Board of Directors (with input from WREDS Advisory 
Committee);  

 Soliciting and vetting of nominations for the Board of Directors;  
 Supporting the Nominating (Selection) Committee as needed (see below regarding 

Nominating Committee);  
 Working with the newly formed Board on Corporate letters patent (articles of 

incorporation), operational protocol and budgeting; and  
 Effective liaison with all municipal Councils until such time as the new Corporation is well 

enough established to liaise on its own.  
 
Following the establishment of the Board of Directors, it is anticipated that the relationship 
between the Implementation Committee and the new WREDC could evolve. For example, the 
Implementation Committee could be expanded to include other leaders within the local 
economic development framework (particularly other associated implementing organizations). 
Further, key responsibilities may change to fulfill more of an advisory/coordination function with 
the Senior Management team, with a more focused mandate relating to the alignment and 
implementation of key deliverables and the two-way communication with partner organizations 
(municipal councils, staff, and other stakeholders). This will allow for a strong connection with 
the Senior Management of the various funding partners, critical to ensuring alignment and the 
strategic employment of resources related to various economic development initiatives region-
wide.  
 
 
 



Page 22 of 29 
 

Nomination/Selection Committee  
 
It is important that the process for the selection of Board members be open, transparent and 
credible to both public and private sector stakeholders. This is particularly true for the initial 
board to ensure the new organization establishes early credibility. Accordingly, it is 
recommended that a Nomination/Selection Committee comprised of public and private sector 
leaders be established with the responsibility for appointing members of the Board of Directors 
of WREDC.  
 
In particular, this Committee should both provide a linkage between the shareholders, and bring 
public and private-sector leaders together. Consequently, it is recommended that the 
Nominating Committee be comprised of the Regional Chair, the three City Mayors, one 
Township Mayor, and three individuals selected by the WREDS Advisory Committee. The 
Nominating Committee is expected to consider candidates that are identified through an open 
call for nominations following initial screening by the Implementation Committee.  
 
A Nomination/Selection Committee structured in this way would provide an appropriate linkage 
between WREDC and the Region and Area Municipalities, who will provide most of the initial 
funding for the organization. It will ensure that perspectives of the municipal funders and the 
private sector are appropriately considered in establishing the new Board. It will also provide 
one accountability mechanism between the municipal funders and WREDC, without the 
municipal funders all needing to be represented on the Board. This should provide an 
appropriate balance between creating an arms length, skills-based organization, and 
maintaining a degree of accountability to the municipal funders.  
 
Other Potential Committees the Board may wish to consider establishing  
There are a variety of supporting committees that the Board may wish to consider establishing 
over time. These committees could provide valuable and efficient means of checking in with 
people and organizations who are on the “front line” of our economy in a variety of capacities. 
However, it should also be made clear that the decision-making role of the new Regional 
Economic Development Corporation (relative to its mandate, and enunciated through such 
documents as its Letters Patent and strategic plans), remains with the Board. 
  
Some potential future committees that should be considered include:  
 

 Economic Advisory Committee. A committee of high level regional leaders who can 
share their influence, wisdom and interest in the regional economy, but are unable to 
consider Board membership for a variety of reasons. The Committee would be expected 
to meet periodically or on an issue-specific basis;  

 High Value Sector Committees. One or more committees could be established to 
discuss sector-specific opportunities or challenges on an as-needed basis, or on an 
ongoing basis (e.g. to monitor some of our key economic sectors); and  

 Municipal Liaison Committee.  
 
3. Roles and Responsibilities  
 
It is recognized that there are many key players (private, public and not-for-profit) that make up 
the overall economic development framework or “ecosystem”. While the new Waterloo Region 
Economic Development Corporation will be a key player, it will not be the only entity responsible 
for the delivery of a wide range of related services. Further, it is recognized that in order to 
foster long term, successful economic development in the region, it will be important to ensure 



Page 23 of 29 
 

that five key activity areas (or pillars) are appropriately addressed collectively by all service 
providers. The pillars are:  
 

1. Excellence in creating an entrepreneurial culture;  
2. Excellence in business retention and expansion;  
3. Excellence in investment attraction;  
4. Excellence in marketing and communication; and  
5. Excellence in community capacity building.  

 
For more information on these five pillars, please see Attachment C.  
 
The following outlines the proposed roles and responsibilities of key public organizations, at 
least at the outset. Further refinement of these roles is anticipated to occur during the more 
detailed implementation and transition planning in the Fall of 2014.  
 
Waterloo Regional Economic Development Corporation  
As the primary “voice” and face of Economic Development in Waterloo Region, it is proposed 
that the WREDC will take on a variety of functions that are best done at a regional level such as: 
 

 Overall management of the regional economic development strategic plan and 
coordination with other stakeholders;  

 Investment attraction to Waterloo Region – including building a strong case (value 
proposition) for investing in the region’s key growth industries;  

 Liaison with Provincial and Federal government efforts to attract industry and grow key 
sectors of the economy;  

 Collaboration with other economic jurisdictions for the broader promotion of Waterloo 
Region;  

 Marketing and promotion of the region;  
 Key business sector development activities;  
 Talent development and people attraction (working with partners);  
 Data and research to support regional economic development activities; and  
 Coordination of area municipal efforts in retaining and supporting the expansion of 

“regional scale” businesses.  
 
Area Municipalities (Economic Development)  
 
The Area Municipalities (cities and townships) will continue to play an integral part in the 
delivery of local economic development services. Below is a sample of the key roles they will 
continue to undertake:  
 

 Community promotion;  
 Land and real estate development;  
 Point of contact for business into Area Municipal government (zoning, etc.);  
 Business retention and expansion activities;  
 Investment attraction and collaboration with WREDC;  
 Ensure area municipal government activities are aligned with the Regional Economic  
 Development Strategy; and  
 Establish protocol for dealing with investor prospects within the Area Municipal 

organization.  
 



Page 24 of 29 
 

Region of Waterloo (Office of Economic Development)  
 
With the establishment of the new Office of Economic Development within the Region of 
Waterloo, it will be important to distinguish functions from the WREDC and from the Area 
Municipalities. Key functions identified at this point will include: 
  

 Data and research support for regional economic development efforts including key 
industries (i.e. information and analytics) (this function could ultimately be assumed by 
the WREDC);  

 Develop and maintain an inventory of available land for development/ employment 
purposes (this function could also be assumed by the WREDC);  

 Point of contact for business development inquiries/activities within the Region of 
Waterloo (corporately);  

 Ensure Regional government activities are aligned with the Regional Economic 
Development Strategy; and  

 Establish/coordinate a protocol for dealing with investor prospects within the Regional 
organization.  

 
Other key (public-facing) stakeholders in the Waterloo Regional Economic Development 
Strategy  
 
There are more than two dozen organizations, from business groups to educational institutions 
that have a role to play in the implementation of the Regional Economic Development Strategy. 
A key objective is to ensure these stakeholders see themselves in the plan and hold themselves 
accountable for their roles and responsibilities as well. Examples include: 
  

 Accelerator Centre® and Communitech: Incubating and supporting tech and high growth 
potential entrepreneurs;  

 Small Business Centres: Providing general small business support and services and 
ensuring a thriving small business climate in the region;  

 Workforce Planning Board of Waterloo Wellington Dufferin: Workforce development and 
labour market planning;  

 Greater Kitchener-Waterloo and Cambridge Chambers of Commerce – supporting the 
growth and development of businesses within Waterloo Region.  

 Post-secondary institutions: University of Waterloo, Wilfrid Laurier and Conestoga 
College – talent development, research and development, sector support, etc.  

 
4. Conclusion and Expected Next Steps  
 
Much progress has been made since June 2013 on several key initiatives. In addition, a 
collaborative, coordinated and inclusive approach continues to remain the focus of all the work 
underway. Establishing a new framework for economic development represents a significant 
change – the need to plan for and facilitate a smooth transition is a key priority. To this end, staff 
will continue to develop the various implementation components of the WREDS and WREDC 
(including transition strategy and funding/ budget implications) for future consideration and 
decision by Municipal Councils. Throughout this period, it is expected that Canada’s Technology 
Triangle Inc. will continue to operate throughout the planning and set-up phase of the new 
WREDC (2014-2015). Further, it is recognized that there is an opportunity to merge key assets 
with the new WREDC, building on the strength and expertise that already exists and to maintain 
momentum. It is anticipated that the new WREDC will be fully functional by January 1, 2016. 



Page 25 of 29 
 

Next Steps  
 
There are several next steps that will move this work forward. They include:  
 

 Completing the Waterloo Region Economic Development Strategy and refining the 
associated Action Plan;  

 Developing a comprehensive Implementation/Transition Plan (Fall 2014);  
 Presenting final recommendations for Municipal Council decision/ coordinated with 2015 

Budget Process (Q1 2015);  
 WREDC Establishment/ WREDS Implementation (2015); and  
 New WREDC fully operational by January 1, 2016.  

 



Page 26 of 29 
 

Attachments:  
Attachment A -Economic Development Corporation Examples Attachment B -Summary of findings: Review of Canadian Economic 
Development Entities  
Attachment A – Economic Development Corporation Examples  

Organization/ Location  Mandate  Governance  Functions  

Enterprise Greater 
Moncton 

www.greatermoncton.org  
 

Dieppe, Moncton and 
Riverview NS  

 First and on-going point of contact 
for new and existing businesses  

 Works to develop and implement 
economic development strategies 
for the region  

 Aim to attract business investment 
and enhance existing business 
development by promoting Greater 
Moncton as the ideal place to do 
business  

Includes a Leadership 
Council (11) and a Board 
of Directors (12-13)  

 Start Your Business  
 Grow Your Business 
 Labour Force Development  
 Economic Research  
 Strategic Partnership  
 Youth Initiatives  
 Immigration  
 Attract industry  
 Sector Development  

Thunder Bay Economic 
Development 

Commission (CEDC) 
www.thunderbay.ca/CED 

C  
Thunder Bay ON  

 Business development  
 Business retention and expansion  
 Entrepreneurial support  
 Opportunity promotion, and 
 Collection and assessment of key 

business data  

Independent Board of 
Directors. The members 
serve for a four-year 
term. The 
Commissioners receive 
formal proposals on 
projects that will 
contribute to economic 
development.  

 Community information and statistics  
 Networking and referrals  
 Assistance in site selection  
 Labour market data  

Windsor Essex Economic 
Development  
Corporation 

www.choosewindsoresse 
x.com  

 
Amherstburgm, Essex, 
Kingsville, Lakeshore, 
LaSalle, Leamington, 

Pelee Island, 
Tecumseh,Windsor ON  

The WindsorEssex Economic 
Development Corporation is a not-for-
profit organization supported by the City 
of Windsor and County of Essex and is 
responsible for advancing economic 
development to grow and sustain 
prosperity in the region. The main focus 
of the organization is to develop and 
execute strategies to retain, expand, 
attract and help start up new 
businesses in the Windsor-Essex 
region.  

The 8 member Board of 
Directors is responsible 
for overseeing the 
activities of the Windsor 
Essex Economic 
Development 
Corporation.  

 Business Expansion & Retention  
 Information  
 Advice  
 Assistance  

 Business Attraction  
 Small Business Centre  
 Marketing  

London Economic 
Development 
www.ledc.com  

 
London ON  

The London Economic Development 
Corporation (LEDC) is the primary 
economic development agency in 
London, Canada, and is a partnership 
between the City of London and the  

12 member Board of 
Directors.  

 Attracting new business and foreign direct 
investment to London  

 Retaining existing business and assisting 
with local expansions  

 Advocating for improving the business 



Page 27 of 29 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 private sector. The LEDC is improving 
the economic well-being of Londoners 
through the growth and expansion of 
local businesses and the attraction of 
new businesses to London.  

 environment in London  
 Providing workforce development 

leadership to connect businesses with 
education institutes and employment 
sector agencies  

 Marketing and promoting London for 
business opportunities in overseas 
markets  

 Establishing business support 
partnerships throughout the community  

 Assisting the City of London in 
development of strategic plans such as 
industrial lands strategy  

 



Page 28 of 29 
 

Attachment B - Summary of findings: Review of Canadian Economic Development 
Entities  

 
 
 The vast majority of jurisdictions in Canada with at least 50,000 residents have a 

regional agency overseeing economic development. St. John’s and Charlottetown are 
notable exceptions but as they are the dominant urban centres, provincial economic 
development efforts are centred on them.  
 

o In most cases, the municipalities involved in the regional development 
agency also have internal economic development staff as well but there is a 
clear delineation of roles between the city and regional agencies.  
 

 The Boards of Directors include business leaders and representatives from key public 
institutions such as universities. Half of the organizations have some government 
representation on the board of directors. Several boards have mayors and councillors 
directly on the board of directors and two others have ex officio representation from City 
Hall.  
 

 70 percent these agencies are relying on private sector funding for at least a portion of 
their annual operating budget.  

 
 Municipal governments are the core funders of the regional agencies accounting for 

between 40% and 80% of annual funding.  
 
 All of the agencies have a mandate to attract industry and investment to their region.  

 
 A majority have initiatives related to people attract and talent retention.  

 
 Around half of the regional economic development agencies have small business 

counselling and support services. In the other half of the jurisdictions reviewed small 
business counselling and support services are offered by another government funded 
organization or organizations.  

 
 Most are involved in targeted sector development efforts.  

 
 All provide promotional materials and marketing for the region.  

 
 The majority provide some form of economic scorecard on regional economic 

performance.  
  



Page 29 
 

 
Attachm
  
  
 

1 C
th
th
m

 
2 R

g
a
a

 
3 In

a
cr
n
st

 
4 M

is
a

 
5 T

c
a
e
so

 

of 29 

ment C – Fiv
 

Creating and
hat acknowle
he Waterloo 

mix of a varie

Retention: T
rowing and 
nd leveragin
ssist and gro

nvestment a
nd while its
ritical to hav
ew skills, 
trengthens o

Marketing: o
s essential to
n area that r

The final but
apacity bu
lign and lift 
ducation fac
ome of the k

e Pillars of 
  

d nurturing
edge the co
region. This

ety of home g

The majority
flourishing b

ng their abil
ow our exist

attraction: c
s numbers w
ve a robust a
new marke

our region’s 

of the region 
o position th
requires sign

in many w
ilding or en
the other fo
cilities, healt
key elements

Economic 

g an entrepr
ontribution th
s is an histo
grown busin

y of jobs in
by establish
ities. It is e

ting base tha

continues to 
will not matc
approach in 
ets, and n
internationa

to our intern
e communit
nificant and 

ays the larg
nsuring that

our pillars. La
th care, tran
s of this pilla

Developme
 

reneurial cu
hat small bus
orical fact an
ness and to a

n any regio
ing new ma
asier, more 

an to attract 

be an impo
ch that of g
place centre
ew opportu
l status.  

nal residents
y as a great
somewhat im

gest pillar of
t the human
and develop
nsportation i
ar.  

ent  
 

ulture: thos
siness has o
nd must be 
assist with y

on are depe
arkets, enha

cost effecti
new investm

rtant means
growth in ou
ed on busin
unities and 

s and busine
t place to liv
mmediate at

f economic 
n resources,
pment, partn
nfrastructure

 

se activities 
on the healt
fostered to 

youth retentio

endent upon
anced produ
ive and mor

ment into the

s to grow a r
ur local bus
ess attractio
 enhanced

esses as we
ve, work and
ttention.  

developmen
, services a
nerships with
e and strate

 

within the re
th and welfa
ensure a he
on.  

n local bus
ctivity, mark
re sustainab
e region.  

egional econ
siness base,
on. With it co
 creativity, 

ell as to the w
 invest in. T

nt is comm
and infrastru
h post secon
egic planning

egion 
are of 
ealthy 

iness 
keting 
ble to 

nomy 
, it is 
omes 

and 

world 
This is 

unity 
ucture 
ndary 
g are 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.1















Kennel Comparison Chart 

Kennel  Address  Number of 
Dogs on 
Licence 

Boarding  Breeding Approximate 
Number of 
Properties Within 
1 (one) km 

Closest 
Habitable 
Building from 
Kennel (approx.) 

Any Noise 
Complaints on 
Record 

Warnings or 
Charges 
Issued for 
Noise 

Conditions  
Imposed 
Above By‐law 
Requirements 

Natural 
Noise 
Barriers 

Man Made 
Noise 
Barriers 

Country 
Paws 

1881 Carmel‐Koch 
Road 

48  Yes  No  29  320m  Yes  No  Yes  Yes  Yes 

Wilhard 
Barth 

1684 Berlett’s 
Road 

6  No  Yes  51  196m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Nancy 
Miller 

2268 Berlett’s 
Road 

15  No  No  29  189m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Garchangan 
Kennels 

2247 Berlett’s 
Road 

40  No  Yes  29  247m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Moonsnoe 
Kennels 

2295 Erb’s Road  6  No  Yes  34  122m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Willow 
Creek 
Kennel 

3532 Erb’s Road  20  Yes  Yes  47  121m  No  No  Yes  Yes  Yes 

Sandra 
Crowne 

2108 Notre Dame 
Drive 

20  No  No  110  255m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Countryside  1465 Trussler Road  120  Yes  Yes  43  355m  No  No  No  Yes  No 
Ken Strauss  4933 Wilmot‐

Easthope Road 
96  No  Yes  18*  80m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

Laverne 
and Wendy 
Forwell 

2056 Witmer Road  30  Yes  Yes  80  139m  No  No  No  Yes  No 

*Note: the one kilometer range encompasses an area outside of Waterloo Region and those properties are not included in the count. 

 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
Schedule A























August 15, 2014 
 
Dear Mayor Armstrong & Wilmot Councillors: 
 
 I’m writing in regard to a recent article in the New Hamburg Independent about 
restrictions on outside time for dogs at the Country Paws Kennel on Carmel Koch Road.  For 
close to three years now after a few recommendations from friends, I started taking my dog to 
Country Paws.  From the first meeting with Glenda and Caroline I sensed a true love and caring 
in the work they do with the dogs.  The mere mention of the words “Country Paws” has Saffron 
prancing around in anticipation of her weekly trip there.  The first couple of times I almost 
missed the driveway as the sign for the kennel is recessed a bit into the woodlot.  My very first 
impression as I turned down the laneway was, “What a neat place for a getaway cabin”.  No one 
would even know it was there.  You are literally entering a lovely forested area.  I felt like a kid 
again up north.  If I was a dog this is the kind of place I would want to hang out in.  I purposely 
roll down my windows to enjoy the view and listen for forest sounds as I drive down the twisty, 
bumpy gravel road.  I can hear birds at times.  To this day I’ve never heard a dog bark until I’m 
right up at the kennel. 
I love forests and the country.  I was a farm girl and I have many wonderful memories of it.  
However one of those not so lovely memories was the stench of manure.  I didn’t like it but I got 
used to it. 
I don’t know how long most of the neighbours have been living near this kennel but I think one 
would do their homework before locating near something they may have a low tolerance for.  
This kennel has been in operation since 1996.  That’s 18 years.  
Why all the complaining about noise now other than this kennel owner just requesting what 
another kennel in the area already has?  
Why is it that this is the only kennel in the area with these kinds of outside time restrictions for 
their dogs? 
Let alone fair – is this healthy for these dogs? 
I read also it’s half the number of dogs that some other kennels have without the outside 
restrictions.  Do these dogs happen to bark louder or is it just a higher tolerance level of other 
kennel area residents? 
What makes this kennel so unique?  I think I may know.  It’s the location.  It’s absolutely 
beautiful.  Personally speaking if the kennel wasn’t around I wouldn’t mind a little cabin back 
there myself.  Of course I’d have my dog Saffron with me. 
 
 
Marlene Miller 
Baden, ON 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
Schedule B



From: Sherry Coman 
Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2014 5:49 PM 
To: Les Armstrong; Al Junker; Peter Roe; Barry Fisher; Jeff Gerber; Mark Murray 
Subject: re: Country Paws kennel 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
I am writing in support of Glenda Rutherford's bid to have the conditions on her kennel 
operations lifted. I am a customer of Country Paws: my dog has been boarding there regularly 
for three and a half years. 
 
I appreciate that I do not live next to a kennel and do not have that first-hand experience. At the 
same time, I am not sure I understand why this kennel must live into certain conditions that other 
kennels don't have to abide by - conditions which may in fact be limiting to the wellbeing of the 
animals. As a customer of the business, I would like my dog to have the advantages of more 
outdoor time that are given to other kennels in the same region.  
 
As you consider the concerns of the neighbours, please also keep in mind the welfare of the 
animals -- it is a very important consideration. Dogs who have to live within very specific 
outdoor time rules fall into challenges when there is torrential rain and/or severe weather during 
the allowable hours. What are they supposed to do then? Treating animals with set hours is is 
problematic this way. Animals, particularly dogs, need access to space that allows for variations 
in the timing of weather and/or release and change from the social life of the dogs within the 
kennel to maintain a healthy and vibrant kennel life.   
 
Glenda and Carolyn are awesome proprietors. I feel a loyalty to them that comes from knowing 
my dog is well cared for. From time to time they have observed behaviour and issues with my 
dog that I had not even noticed yet myself. They are friendly and accommodating people and 
they are good business people. But they need to be able to run their business in the best interests 
of the animals they serve and the customers those animals belong to. That means allowing them 
more appropriate space and outdoor time, or at least that equal to other folks operating similar 
kennel businesses. 
 
I hope that these comments will be helpful to you as you continue to consider Glenda 
Rutherford's request. Thank you for your time and attention. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
Sherry Coman 
 
586 Penny Lane 
Waterloo, ON 
N2T 2L3 
519-570-2486 
 



From: Yvonne Zyma  
Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 7:52 PM 
To: Les Armstrong; Al Junker; Peter Roe; Barry Fisher; Jeff Gerber; Mark Murray 
Subject: Country Paws Kennels concerns 
 
 I am one of many long term customers of Country Paws.  I am writing this 
to show my support for them concerning restrictions being placed by the 
Township. 
  
I am concerned that these restrictions may indeed affect the business 
itself.  They have an excellent reputation, and people come from various 
parts of the Region because of this.  They have won the Region Record's 
Readers' Choice award at least twice. 
  
I have at no time heard any of the dogs barking when I am entering the 
property from the road.  Out of curiousity I also stopped along the road near 
one the of the complainant's homes and heard nothing.  Perhaps the bylaw 
should be guided by distance, such as some of the bylaws I researched 
before writing this.  
  
This may be an issue beyond the bylaw, and more of a personal nature.  I 
understand that some of the people involved are members of the same 
family, and are not simply "neighbours". 
  
Country Paws is operated in a professional and responsible manner.  
  
Yvonne Zyma & Wolfe 
New Hamburg  

 



From: Thomas 
Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 6:08 PM 
To: Les Armstrong 
Cc: Al Junker; Peter Roe; Barry Fisher; Jeff Gerber; mark.morray@wilmot.ca 
Subject: Country Paws Kennel request re Bylaw 
 
Hello Les:    
 
It is our hope that council will provide a fair hearing for Glenda and Carol as they provide a much valued 
service to the community at large.   We feel that all kennels should be treated fairly and with the same 
set of guidelines no matter where they are located in the township.  Presently limiting “outside ‐ time” 
to 3 hours on a weekend is, in my opinion too restrictive and does not provide a good environment for 
the welfare of the animals.  
 
We have used the services of this kennel for many years and have found them to be excellent care 
givers and would hope that the wellbeing of the animals being looked after would weigh heavily in the 
council’s decision 
 
Regards 
 
Tom and Barb Riedel 
519‐662‐2503 
 



From: Monica  
Sent: Tuesday, August 12, 2014 8:07 AM 
To: Les Armstrong 
Subject: country paws 
 
Dear Mr. Les Armstrong, 

 

This is in response to the article in the New Hamburg Independent, regarding Country Paws. 

 

I am quite familiar with that area, as I grew up on Region Road 12, just down a concession from Country Paws (CP).  In the past, 
my parents have used their facility and, now, my husband and I also count on their services.  

 

I am struggling to believe the complaints of the neighbours.   Our family property had a small farm adjacent to it, which had both 
goats and sheep on their property.  The farm was closer in proximity to any of the properties would be to CP.   We could hear the 
animals, but you really had to concentrate to hear them.  It was simply a sound, which one associated with living in the 
country.  Thus, I find it very difficult to believe that the neighbours are so overwhelmed with the sounds of the dogs.  Anyone 
living in that area, choose to live in a farming community where they would hear animals making sounds.  Clearly, if you don’t 
want to hear animals, then consider moving to the city.  What will the next complaint be… that the cows ‘moo’ too loudly and 
the animals smell?  Will the farmers now need to keep the cows in the barn? 

 

My husband and I were surprised to learn that the 3 hour restriction existed on the weekends.  Our Newfoundlander dog, who 
ironically is not a barker, should not be inside for 21 hours of a 24 hour period.  Caroline and Glenda, the owners of Country 
Paws, are very caring to Hudson, but we have to do what is best for our dog.  Confinement is not best for him and we may have 
to search out another kennel, which has less restrictive outdoor times.  I would assume that other owners will likely make a 
similar decision.  To me, the neighbours are trying to find a round-about way, to close down a small business.  They may succeed 
if the outdoor restriction is not modified. 

 

I hope this information is helpful. 

 

kind regards, 

 

 

Monica Furniss Erling 

J. Thomas Erling 

 



---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: roderick reid  
Date: Mon, Aug 4, 2014 at 4:13 PM 
Subject: Country Paws 
To: lesarmstrong@wilmot.ca 

Dear Mayor Armstrong: 
  
     I read with great interest an article in the July 30th edition of the New hamburg Independent 
regarding the interpretation and enforcement of the kennel by-laws affecting Country 
paws.  Your senior by-law officer seemed to be bewildered by the concerns as the noise levels 
were within reason, therfore it seems astounding that Ms Rutherford's request has been reacted to 
with such vehemence.   
      The surrounding neighbours who have lodged complaints and intimated further legal action 
appear to have a gang mentality and will not stop until their way is the only way. And 
considering this is a rural application where there is a barrage of noises and smells(farm 
machinery,bailers, tractors,drying equipment, manure, pigs, chickens,coyotes.......)the 
situation  is quite amusing given the context.  It is my understanding that bylaws are for the 
entire township,and to the benefit of all the residents not just the very vocal and powerful few. 
       I look forward to what happens next! 
       
  
Yours truly,Sandra Kurek .  Phillipsburg 
 



From: Sandra Burt 
Sent: Monday, August 04, 2014 7:02 PM 
To: Les Armstrong; Al Junker; Peter Roe; Barry Fisher; Jeff Gerber; Mark Murray 
Subject: country paws kennel 
 
Dear Les Armstrong, 
 
I am sending a letter in response to the recent article in the New Hambug Independent 
concerning Country Paws Kennel. 
 
Sandra Burt 

1277 Berletts Road 
RR 1 
St. Agatha, Ontario 
N0B 2L0 

 
August 2, 2014 

Dear Les Armstrong, 

 

I was very upset to read the article by Doug Coxson in the last issue of the New Hamburg 
Independent about some neighbours' concerns about noise levels at Country Paws Kennel.. I 
have been taking my dogs to this kennel for the past ten years, and I have always been impressed 
by the quality of care that the owners and staff provide for the pets in their care. They provide a 
very important service to the residents of Wilmot. I have never heard unusual noise levels 
coming from the kennel. Perhaps the Strauses, who built their monster home only recently, 
should have thought about the kennel before they made their living decision. The kennel has 
been running (with full approval from all levels of authority) since 1996. I fully support the 
owners' application for increased play time for the dogs. That would be the humane decision in 
this matter. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Sandra Burt 



From: Sarah Banbury  
Sent: Wednesday, August 20, 2014 1:48 PM 
To: Les.Armstrong@Wilmot.ca 
Subject: Country Paws Kennels 
 
Mr Mayor: 
    I am writing to express my support for Country Paws kennels and the owner, Glenda Rutherford. 
    We live on the farm due south (1942 Wilby Rd) and although we do hear dogs barking at times, the 
noise is neither  constant or bothersome. 
    The kennels were established many years before Mr. Straus built his house.  He knew the kennels 
were there. He could have situated his house differently so that he sound would not bother him.  If the 
kennels are so annoying, it should be up to him tv o rebuild the berm, make  it  higher, plant trees or 
errect a sound barrier. 
As for peaceful country living, there are coyotes, who make noise at night, traffic noise from Notre Dame 
and Carmel Koch roads, farm machinery,  airplanes,etc.  The countryside is lovely to live in but it certainly 
is not dead quiet, and Mr. Straus who grew up nearby should have considered this when he chose to 
build his house in this location. 
    The kennels have many clients locally who would be very upset if they were made to curtail their 
business (myself included)  It is absolutely unjust for someone to lose their livlihood because of a 
neighbour's inconvenience, especially when the neighbour chose to live there. 
  As I see it, Mr. Straus made the mistake of situating his house at the highest point with his open vistas 
directly towards the kennels. So the sound has a direct line to the back of his house.  This was his 
mistake and not the fault of his neighbours. 
    I hope council will do the right thing and allow the kennels to continue operating withour harrassment 
from Mr. Straus. 
    Sincerely, Sarah Banbury 
 







dans
Polygon

dans
Polygon

dans
Arrow

dans
Typewriter
This fence is chain link, not solid wood.

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter
These trees no longer exist.

dans
Arrow

dans
Typewriter

dans
Typewriter
APPENDIX A



APPENDIX B 

 

 











 

 

Chai

Solid board fen

Solid 

outdo

n link fence 

Approx

nce 

board fence alon

oor run 

Mixed vegetatio

ximate location o

ng entire east sid

on including mat

Site of ceda

planted in 2

of berm

de of 

ture trees 

ars 

2003 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
Schedule C



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.2





dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.3.1





dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.4.1

























dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.1







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.2









dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.6.1





www.grandriver.ca Grand River Conservation Authority

The Grand River watershed newsletter

July/August 2014  •  Volume 19, Number 4

What’s Inside:

Features

Ash trees  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Heritage River 
Grand recreation  . . . . . . . . . 3

Recreation surveys  . . . . . . . 4

Taking Action
Craig Campbell . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Tires removed . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
New forest
at Conestogo Lake  . . . . . . . 6

Foundation 
Apps Mill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Board appointments  . . . . . 7

Calendar  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Cover photo
A GRCA staff member takes
down an ash tree at Puslinch
Tract last July. This was the
first place where the emerald
ash borer was found in the
Grand River watershed.

Photo by Kevin Tupman

Do ash trees have 
a future in the Grand?
By Janet Baine
GRCA Communications Specialist

W
hen it comes to the future of ash trees

in the Grand River watershed, the

news is grim.

There are only two options for ash trees and the
GRCA is doing both of these — arranging to take
infested ash trees down before they become a
hazard to people and property and treating a few
healthy ash trees with a bioinsecticide to keep
them alive. Both options are costly.

“Unless we see a significant surprise on the part
of nature, virtually all untreated ash trees over a
couple of centimetres in diameter will be gone in
10 to 15 years. In some locations, such as at the
head office in Cambridge, it will be even sooner
— seven to 10 years,” says Ron Wu-Winter, the
GRCA forester.

The ash are being attacked by the emerald ash
borer (EAB) beetle, which has been dubbed a

beautiful killer. The EAB was first found in
Ontario in 2002 and was first noticed in the
Grand River watershed at Puslinch Tract, just east
of Cambridge in 2010. These were the first ash
trees that fell victim to the Eurasian insect. Other
ash trees within the watershed were so weakened

last winter that they came down
during the ice storm and wind
storms.

Cousin of the lilac and olive
tree, the majestic ash trees were a
popular replacement for the elm
trees that had been devastated by
Dutch elm disease, beginning in
the 1960s.

The attack on the local ash trees is already well
underway in many locations within the Grand
River watershed — an area the size of Prince
Edward Island. The GRCA owns a lot of land and
as a result has lots of ash trees to contend with.



Share the resources  – Share the responsibilityPage 2

providing up to two years of protection.
TreeAzin is effective at protecting trees
without causing damage to passing wildlife
or pets, nearby plants or gardens, pollinators
including bees, or people. It is one of the few
tools we have to protect healthy ash trees
from EAB where they are injected – one by
one,” according to Trees Canada. 

TreeAzin is a systemic
insecticide that can be
injected directly into the
base of the ash tree at
several locations. Ash
trees need to be treated
with injections every two
years for at least eight to
10 years in order to keep
them alive. 

Treatment is only suitable for the trees that
are still healthy, are structurally sound and
showing little to no signs of decline due to
the insect. 

200 lucky ash trees
Among his many other responsibility, Wu-

Winter is searching out 200 healthy ash trees
at locations across the watershed to inject

them with TreeAzin. In the ash tree lottery,
these are the winners. 

The GRCA’s goal for this program is to
save the unique genetic material in local
trees. Another goal is to keep ash trees for
their aesthetic value and the unique services
that they provide, such as providing shade
on a beach. Keeping these trees alive will

allow future generations to see
what an ash tree looks like. 

The trees that are being
selected by Wu-Winter are
usually within parks or near
recreational areas. Not all 200
trees have been selected yet, but
the plan is to have them all
selected and injected this

summer. 
In addition, cottagers at Belwood and

Conestogo lakes can have the ash trees on
their property assessed. If they are found to
be healthy, the cottager can cover the cost of
the TreeAzin product, while the GRCA will
cover the cost of the equipment and labour
related to the injections.

“There is a feeling of urgency to doing
this, because we need to start injecting these

Forests with more than 30 percent ash face
a serious threat to their overall structure and
function once the ash are infested.
Fortunately, there are not many of these
kinds of forests within the Grand River, and
they are not large. Most forests will survive
the loss of these trees. 

The magic of neem
Another bit of good news is that healthy

ash trees that are examined by a forester and
found to be free of EAB can be treated with
an bioinsecticide. The neem tree from India
(the name is derived from the Sanskrit
“Nimba” meaning “bestower of good health”)
has turned out to be a crucial weapon in
Canada’s battle against the ash borer.

In India, neem is regarded as a miracle
plant. Everything from toothbrushes to
painkillers is made from parts of this tree.
The neem tree’s seeds are the source of
azadirachtin, a natural insecticide, which is
used in TreeAzin – the product developed in
Canada to combat EAB. 

“TreeAzin kills EAB larvae and also
reduces EAB fertility and egg viability when
EAB females feed on the tree’s foliage,

A tree can be injected with a bioinsecticide around its
trunk every two years. Ron Wu-Winter is selecting 200

ash trees on GRCA land to treat in this way.

“There is a feeling of
urgency to doing this,
because we need to start
injecting these trees
before they start to
decline.”

-Ron Wu-Winter

Photos by Kevin Tupman



Page 3Grand Actions  – July-August 2014

20 years of
recreation
By Janet Baine
GRCA Communications Specialist

T
here has been a stellar increase in

visitors to the river’s edge over the

20 years since the Grand River

system became recognized as a Canadian

Heritage River.

Without a doubt, the increase in visitors
was already well underway in 1994. The tide
had already shifted from the 1950s, when
parents warned their children not to go near
the local waterways because water carried
disease and people tended to dump their
garbage near the water. 

The designation of the Grand River and its
tributaries was based on the excellence of
river-based recreational opportunities
provided by the river systems. Those
opportunities are being recognized and
tapped into even more today than they were
in 1994. Increased recreational use of the
river is a visible reminder of its recreational
value in communities up and down the
watershed.

National recognition helped bring

trees before they start to decline. If we do it
too late, then the success rate won’t be as
high,” Wu-Winter says.

Any trees that are not injected will need to
be taken down. While the GRCA staff have
been bogged down by tree removal in the
wake of the ice storm last December, they
are just at the beginning phase of removing
infested ash trees. The removal program will
accelerate, taking more time and resources in
coming years.

“Both options are expensive. We are
treating 200 trees, so the bulk of the work is
going to be hazard tree removal. The
quantity of trees being treated is a token
compared to the overall number of ash trees,
but it is important for genetic preservation,
and keeping the heritage of the ash tree.”

The cost of treatment to the GRCA is
$15,000 each year just for the TreeAzin. This
is a significant cost to keeping ash within the
watershed, but the cost of removal can be
high for large trees. 

In some cases, especially in urban areas, it
makes economic sense to treat a tree because
the cost of removing a large tree close to a
building is expensive. It can actually be
cheaper to treat a tree for 10 years than to
remove it. 

If you have ash trees you want to protect
or think your trees might already be infested
with emerald ash borer, contact an arborist
who has been certified by the International
Society of Arboriculture to have them

H E R I T A G E
R I V E R

treated with this extract.

Buy local, burn local
EAB is the most recent in a series of

species-specific attacks on trees that has
resulted from invasive bugs inadvertently
arriving in North America from afar. 

Local trees have little or no resistance to
these foreign invaders and the results can be
devastating. This has been the case with
Dutch elm disease, beech bark disease and
pine shoot beetle. All of these diseases were
brought into North America from other
parts of the world and then spread as wood
moved from place to place.

Now some American states have laws that
prevent people from moving firewood more
than 50 or 100 miles. 

When you buy wood for camping, please
get firewood locally — and burn it onsite. A
campfire helps make trips to the great
outdoors memorable, but firewood can also
destroy the natural treasures that make
camping and other outdoor activities
enjoyable.

In fact, firewood infested with an insect or
disease that is moved to a further location
creates a “hot spot” — much like in a forest
fire. Once started, it spreads the pest and its
damage to the environment much farther.

While EAB is established in many parts of
the Grand River watershed, signs of it haven’t
been found at other locations, so take care
and buy and burn wood locally. 

Out for a hike at Apps’ Mill Nature Centre.



Share the resources  – Share the responsibility

and Brantford have Parks and Recreation
master plans that incorporate river
recreation in their communities, but there is
no overall river recreation master plan for
the watershed.

Conflicts can arise. Last July, the County
of Brant sought a solution to increasing
visitors to a park in Paris due to outfitters
who brought buses with paddlers to paddle
the Grand. The municipality implemented
permit fees for outfitters to launch boats
from county-owned river access points.
Signs are now posted at river access points to
say that any commercial use of the site
requires a permit. This was a way to alleviate
complaints from nearby residents.

In the late ’90s, recreation groups applied
for a grant to create a recreation master plan
for the Grand River watershed but that bid
was unsuccessful.

“There has been no one to take the lead on
it, so there are still the same issues now as in
1994, except the recreational areas near the
river are busier now,” explains Barbara Veale,
who led the Heritage River designation. 

“There are more trails and access points,
so the issues around use of the river are still
there, but I think that each recreational
provider or municipality is dealing with it
independently, rather than through a
recreation master plan.”

Page 4

years. As the world gets busier and more
connected, people need to go to a riverside
trail or look out onto a reservoir to come
back to the moment and find themselves
again. 

Fishing, canoeing, hiking, cycling and
camping have long been favourite outdoor
activities and all of these seems to be on the
increase. Active transportation groups are
engaging people while outdoor businesses
and clubs are thriving. Kayaking is more
popular and stand-up paddling (SUP) is a
new and growing pursuit. Local river trips
and hiking has eventually led many local
resident to develop the skills and stamina for
extended wilderness or hiking trips in
Canada’s north and abroad.

Volunteer groups like Friends of the
Grand River have done an incredible amount
of work to bring about these changes by
improving river access points. Hiking
organizations and municipalities ensure
there are hundreds of kilometres of trails
within the Grand River — so many, in fact,
that there is no comprehensive hiking trail
map for the watershed, although there are a
few trail books.

At the same time, interest in “citizen
science” activities, such as bird, butterfly and
turtle monitoring, native plant cultivation
and weather watching are also on the rise.
For example, teams of volunteers watch the
bald eagle nests in communities along the
Grand River, because these majestic birds are
back and raising their young by the river.
Certainly these activities are really helpful to
scientists and river managers to help
determine the ecological health and
improvements that can be made to the
natural heritage system. 

Municipalities such as the City of Guelph

attention, funding and volunteers to improve
the recreational features of the local
waterways, but it has also brought a few new
challenges.

Companies, like fishing and canoeing
outfitters, have sprouted up throughout the
watershed. In promoting their own
businesses, they have also been promoting
the Grand River locally, nationally and
internationally. Many have been donating
funds and staff time for river projects.
Municipalities and tourism organizations
have been promoting recreational activities
in the Grand. 

Nature close to home
Nature close to home is part of the

localization movement. Just as people want
to eat local food, there is a noticeable
increase in “staycations” and mini-holidays
close to home. Rather than sitting on
Highway 400 to head north for a weekend
getaway, people realize they can also have an
outdoor experience on the water or trails
close to home. For those who are less
experienced with outdoor recreation or
families with young children, it is good to be
closer to home.

An increasing awareness of the health
benefits of getting outside regularly for both
mind and body is another reason why river
recreation has increased over the past 20

River recreation surveys
DSS Management Consultants Inc., on

behalf of Environment Canada, is carrying
out surveys to learn more about recreational
activities along the Grand River. Recreational
river users can participate in these surveys
on boating, fishing and swimming at
www.grandriver.ca.newsroom.news.cfm.

The beach at Shades’ Mills Park is a great place to enjoy a summer day. If you would like to know
about beaches that are open, check the Newsroom on www.grandriver.ca.

Kayaking on the Grand River in Brant County.

Photo by Virginia MacDonald



Page 5Grand Actions  – July-August 2014

L O O K  W H O ’ S
T A K I N G  A C T I O N

Tires frozen in place last fall at Shade’s Mills reservoir are not yet removed because of the wet
spring kept water levels high. However, all tires will soon be removed.

Photo by Kevin Tupman

Craig Campbell
an eco-hero

Amember of the Kitchener-Waterloo

Field Naturalists was among the

recipients of the conservation awards given

out by Ontario Nature last month. 

Craig Campbell, a member of the
Kitchener-Waterloo Field Naturalists,
received the W.W.H. Gunn Conservation
Award for demonstrating outstanding
personal service and a strong commitment
to conservation.

Campbell has devoted his working life to
the study of Ontario’s natural heritage, and
has played a major role in documenting the
occurrence of many endangered species.
Most notably, he was instrumental in the
Regional Municipality of Waterloo’s adoption
of environmental planning and the
identification of Environmentally Sensitive
Areas. In addition, Craig has contributed to
countless citizen science initiatives including
censuses, surveys and atlases.

A tiresome sight at reservoirs
It is a puzzling sight for a summertime

paddler or shore explorer to spot a few

dozen tires just below the surface of the

water in a GRCA reservoir.

During the 1980s, tires were placed in the
large reservoirs as fish habitat. In fact, tires
were put in large bodies of water around the
globe to create an artificial reef that could
become home to aquatic life. GRCA
ecologist Robert Messier said the tires in the
reservoirs worked — he helped put them in
place and later went snorkeling, where he
saw the fish using them. They transformed
the featureless bottom of the reservoirs by
creating crevices and places for fish to live
and breed.

But times have changed and the tires are
now being removed. 

“In the 1980s there was no tire recycling
industry, so we had to repurpose, to find an
alternative use for old tires. This was one of
them. Now, the tire recycling industry is
strong, there are so many products that can
come out of used tires,” Messier explained.
The tires were placed in Belwood Lake,
Conestogo Lake at Shade’s Mills and a small
area of Guelph Lake. 

“We learned that tires are not suited for
reservoirs, where water levels change and the Tires as seen from the water last summer.

tires are exposed to more severe climactic
conditions. The hardware to hold them
down deteriorated and they have started
spreading out to become less and less
effective.,” he said. Volunteers such as the
Kitchener Bass Masters have been a huge
help by removing the tires when conditions
allow. This is done during the fall when
water levels are low, but the tires have not yet
frozen in place. Soon they will all be gone.

“We’re looking for another natural
solution to create habitat that would be
compatible with overall use of the reservoirs,
so recreational users don’t have any problems
with them and the material doesn’t come
loose and clog up the dam.” Messier said. 

Craig Campbell

Photo by Brett Woodman



Share the resources  – Share the responsibilityPage 6

Foundation which is contributing $65,000.

Tree Facts
•Across the entire watershed, the GRCA is

planting about 400,000 trees this year,
including 95,000 on its own land and
300,000 in partnership with private land
owners.

•The GRCA operates a nursery near
Burford, in Brant County, where it grows
more than 150,000 trees a years from 60
different species.

•Since it was created in 1934, the GRCA
has planted more than 27 million trees on
both private land and its own land.

•The Grand River watershed was 85 per
cent forest 200 years ago. However, tree
cover dropped to just five per cent by 1900
as land was cleared for farming and urban
areas. Today, the tree cover has rebounded
to about 19 per cent. Environment Canada
suggests a healthy watershed needs a tree
cover of about 30 per cent.

•To learn more about the GRCA’s tree
planting program, go to the Tree Planting
section of the GRCA website at
www.grandriver.ca. The GRCA helps
private landowners develop planting plans,
plant the trees and find grants to offset
costs.

By Dave Schultz
GRCA Communications Manager

N
ew forests are rising on old farm

fields in Mapleton Township in an

effort to improve water quality in

streams feeding Conestogo Lake reservoir.

About 70,000 trees are being planted this
year and next on two parcels of land totalling
40 hectares (100 acres) on the north side of
the reservoir.

The GRCA is planting a variety of species
that are native to the area, including spruce,
tamarack, white pine, bur oak, silver maple
and cottonwood.

In addition to the new forests, the GRCA
will also do some reshaping of the landscape
to create some seasonal wetlands that will
also help improve water quality and provide
additional habitat.

As the trees grow in coming years, the
areas will quickly become home to a variety
of animals, such as deer and wild turkeys.
Later, as the forests mature, it’s expected that
several bird species including scarlet
tanagers, ovenbirds and great horned owls
will take up residence.

A 12-hectare parcel near Wellington Road
10 and Concession Road Five has been
planted this year. The second parcel of 28
hectares is near Concession Road 5 and
Sideroad 15. About 18 hectares has been

planted this year and the rest will be planted
in 2015. The land was acquired by the GRCA
when it built the reservoir in the 1950s. It
has been leased to farmers since then.

These two parcels of land were prone to
erosion which sent a lot of sediment down
the streams into the reservoir, explained Ron
Wu-Winter, watershed forester with the
GRCA. In addition, the sediment also
carried nutrients – phosphorous and nitrates
– which are found in manure and
commercial fertilizers. The nutrients would
spur algae and plant growth in the reservoir,
resulting in lower water quality.

The northwestern part of the Grand River
watershed contains some of the best
farmland in Ontario. As a result, the forest
cover is some of the lowest in the watershed.
Forest cover is estimated at 15 per cent or
less. A healthy watershed should have forest
cover of about 30 per cent.

Trees help raise water quality in several
ways. They soak up nutrients in the soil, so
reduce the volume that runs off the surface
into a watercourse. Trees along a stream
shade it, keeping it cooler in summer which
is good for some coldwater fish species.

The total cost of the project is about
$150,000. About $50,000 was contributed by
the Grand River Conservation Foundation. It
is also supported by the Trees Ontario

Oven birds (left) and scarlet tangers (right) are two species of birds that could be more frequent visitors to the area around Conestogo Lake thanks
to tree planting on former farmland next to the park. About 70,000 trees will be planted over the next two years to increase habitat for many birds,

plants and animals.

New forests will grow on former farm fields

Photo by Kevin Tupman Photo by Kellie Superina



Page 7Grand Actions  – July-August 2014

for the children in our community.”
The nature centre was constructed in 1980

thanks to a major donation from SC
Johnson. The official opening was October,
1981.

About 5,000 students visit Apps’ Mill each
year from both public and separate schools.
They attend many curriculum-based
programs to learn about nature during the
school year and camp programs take place
when school is not in session.

To help increase the opportunities the
centre is able to provide to visitors, the
Walton Group of Companies has also made a
contribution that will create an outdoor
classroom as well as provide a new all-
terrain wheelchair that will make the entire
property accessible to those with limited
mobility. Joel Doherty, senior planning and
development manager believes that these
new features will allow visitors the chance to

Apps’ Mill Nature Centre in Brant

County will get a major upgrade next

year thanks to donations made through the

Grand River Conservation Foundation.

SC Johnson, a long-term partner of the
GRCF and strong supporter of GRCA
outdoor education programs, has taken a
leadership role on the renovations with a
$100,000 donation. This will support
upgrades to classroom and outdoor learning
spaces as well as improved accessibility to
the centre. SC Johnson is a Brantford
company and a former recipient of an
Honour Roll Award from the GRCA.

“Since 1917, SC Johnson has been a proud
corporate citizen of Brantford and has
remained committed to helping make life
better for the environment, families and
children” said Ana Dominguez, vice
president and general manager, SC Johnson
Canada. “We believe that by making this
donation to the Grand River Conservation
Foundation we will continue our long-
standing support of environmental education

Many updates in 2015
at Apps’ Mill Nature Centre

Two new directors were appointed to the

Grand River Conservation Foundation

in June — Wayne Fyffe of Paris and James

den Ouden of Kitchener.

At the same annual
general meeting, Brantford
resident Joy O’Donnell was
elected as chair while Doug
Brock from Waterloo
became the past chair.

The Foundation’s 2013
Annual Report was
approved and tells the stories
of individuals and
organizations that support
the Foundation. It is posted
on www.grcf.ca and printed
copies are also available. 

Founded in 1965, the
GRCF channels donations

from individuals,
foundations, groups and businesses to Grand
River Conservation Authority projects. More
than $10 million has been raised so far.

F O U N D A T I O N

New appointments
to Foundation board

develop an even greater appreciation for the
outdoor space around Apps’ Mill. “There are
so many incredible places to explore on this
property, we wanted to be sure that as many
visitors as possible have the chance to
experience them,” said Doherty.

Improvements that are being undertaken
include an elevator, exterior landscaping
such as the outdoor classroom, ramps, better
storage, fully accessible washrooms and
classroom upgrades.

“Over the years our donors have helped
the GRCA to do a lot of smaller projects,
such as trail work, constructing a bridge and
restoring Rest Acres Creek,” said Sara
Wilbur, executive director of the GRCF. “But
it is time for a big facelift for the nature
centre due to wear and tear with all the
visitors it receives. Thanks to the generosity
of many donors, we are expecting the work
to be carried out next year.” 

So far about $250,000 has been raised of
the $300,000 that is needed. 

If you would like to contribute to this or
any other project supported by the GRCF,
please contact Sara Wilbur at 519-621-2763,
ext. 2272.

Fyffe

den Ouden

The Belwood Lake Cottage Association, an organization representing around 300 cottage
owners on Belwood Lake, donated two benches. The donation was made through the Grand
River Conservation Foundation. From left are Craig Bolton, GRCA superintendent of property,
Sam Lawson, GRCA manager of property, Jane Mitchell, chair of the GRCA, cottage association

president Keith McKee and vice-president John Hamilton.

Photo by Karen Idzik



Follow the GRCA:Share the resources  – Share the responsibility

T H E  G R A N D  C A L E N D A R

This newsletter is produced bi-monthly 
by the Grand River Conservation Authority. 

More information:
Current and back issues as well as complete
subscription information is available online
at www.grandriver.ca/GrandActions. 

Submission deadlines: 
The 15th of February, April, June, August,
October and December. Submissions may
be edited for length or style. Photos and
event information is also welcome. We do
our best to publish items, but we are not
able to guarantee publication.

To subscribe by email
GrandActions-subscribe@grandriver.ca

To subscribe by mail, change your
subscription or for information:

Janet Baine, Grand Actions editor
Phone: 519-621-2763, Ext. 2302
E-mail: jbaine@grandriver.ca
Mail: Box 729 
400 Clyde Road
Cambridge ON N1R 5W6

About Grand Actions:

Movies under the stars at
Shade’s Mills Park, Cambridge
every Friday Night

Every Friday at nightfall (weather
permitting) there is a family movie at Shades
Mills Park and these continue until Sept. 5.
Check the Newsroom on the GRCA website
to find out which movies are playing and the
start times. 

Trees and Trout Workshop,
Cambridge, Aug. 13 

Paddock Farms, 4232 Wellington Road 35,
Cambridge

This workshop will help property owners
from across the watershed learn what they
can do on their land to help improve fish
habitat in nearby waterways by planting
trees, shrubs and native plants. It takes place
at 7 p.m. and is free. RSVP. before Aug. 11 to
at the GRCA 1-866-900-4722 ext. 2262 or
mhenderson@grandriver.ca.

Youth Outdoors Day, Luther
Marsh Wildlife Management
Area, Sept. 13. 

A fun-filled day of outdoor activities that
is free to all youth ages 9 to 16 and is limited
to the first 200 who register in advance.
They may have the opportunity to build bird
houses, band birds, try a bow and arrow or
fly fishing, use a dip net or learn about
camping. Registration is free and can be
done online at
www.youthoutdoorsday.com.

Grand River Spey Clave , Brant
Park, Saturday, Oct. 4 & 5

The Spey Clave website has details,

including biographies of the instructors for
this annual event that teaches techniques for
spey fishing. Around 250 participants are
expected at this event, which started in 2007
and was moved to Brant Park in 2013. If the
river conditions are safe, there will be lots of
opportunities for on-stream testing of spey
equipment. Top instructors from around the
world have attended and shown their skills
in Traditional, Skagit and Scandinavian Spey
techniques on the banks of the Grand River.

www.grandriverspey.ca

Run for the Toad, Pinehurst
Lake Park, Saturday Oct. 4 

Runners and walkers representing many
provinces and states participate in this event,
which is Canada's biggest trail event. The 25
and 50 km trail races sell out before the
event starts. Refer to the website
www.runforthetoad.com for more
information.

Bats are Fun, Shade’s Mills
Park, Aug. 16 

Let's debunk the myths and mysteries
surrounding bats, starting at 7:30 p.m.

During this program, kids and parents
will play bat and moth (a sensory skill
game), build a bat kite and, as darkness
descends, embark upon a bat detection hike.
Children under 16 must be accompanied by
an adult. Meet at the boat launch parking
lot. 

Note: GRCA events are listed in the
calendar section at www.grandriver.ca.

Summer is a great time to get a close look at
some of the creatures that live in the

watershed, such as Ontario’s only insect-eating
snake, the grass snake or they blandings turtle
with its yellow underside. Please look out for

baby snappers at the end of the summer. 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.2





1 
 

 
Grand River Conservation Authority 

General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting  

Friday, May 23, 2014 

 

The following are the minutes of the General Membership Meeting held at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, 
May 23, 2014 at the Administration Center, Cambridge, Ontario. 

Members Present: 

J. Mitchell, Chair, L. Armstrong, B. Banbury, B. Bell, L. Boyko, J. Brennan, B. Coleman, T. Cowan, J. 
d’Ailly, J. Haalboom, J. Jamieson, R. Kelterborn, M. Laidlaw, *B. Lee, G. Lorentz, C. Millar, T. 
Nevills, V. Prendergast, J. Ross-Zuj, P. Salter, W. Stauch, G. Wicke 

Members Regrets: 

R. Deutschmann, R. Hillier, F. Morison, S. Schmitt 

Staff: 

J. Farwell, K. Murch, D. Bennett, D. Boyd, N. Davy, K. Armstrong, J. Griffin, S. Lawson, S. Radoja, 
T. Ryan, D. Schultz, G. Sousa,  J. Etienne, N. Garland, F. Natolochny, B. Parrott, S. Shifflett,  S. 
Wilbur 

Also Present: 

H. Handy, Associate, GSP Group Inc.; F. Hasan, Property Owner; L. Jetchick, Friends of Dumfries. 
 

1. Call to Order: 

J. Mitchell, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

2. Roll Call and Certification of Quorum – 13 members constitute a quorum  
(1/2 of members appointed by participating municipalities) 

The Secretary-Treasurer called the roll and certified a quorum with 21 members 
present. A total of 22 members attended the meeting. 

3. Chair’s Remarks: 

J. Mitchell welcomed members, staff and guests and made the following comments: 

 On May 10, 2014 J. Mitchell attended Waterloo Earth Day at Laurel Creek Park.   

 On May 14, 2014 J. Mitchell attended the Brantford/Brant Children’s Water 
Festival. 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.3



2 
 

 Upcoming events include the Waterloo-Wellington Children’s Groundwater 
Festival from May 26 to May 30, 2014; Dumfries Kitefest on June 1, 2014; the 
Grand Opportunities Flyfishing Forum on June 8, 2014; and the Party in the Park 
at Guelph Lake on June 22, 2014. Further information regarding events can be 
found on Grand River Conservation Authority’s (GRCA) website. 

 GRCA will be participating in Doors Open Waterloo Region on September 20, 
2014. The Administration Centre will be open to the public. There will be 
displays about GRCA programs and projects. There will also be guided tours of 
the Flood Operations Centre and Shade’s Mill Dam to learn about the GRCA’s 
flood control program. 

 The members were reminded that the Special Recognition Committee would 
meet following this meeting. 

 J. Brenner thanked D. Boyd for presenting the Water Management Plan (WMP) 
to Town of Erin Council. 

 J. Mitchell said that she received positive feedback with respect to D. Schultz’s 
presentation regarding the past and future of the Grand River watershed at the 
Homer Watson House and Gallery. 

 W. Stauch commended D. Schultz with respect to his presentation at Cambridge 
City Hall regarding the 1974 flood. 

4. Review of Agenda: 

There were no additions to or deletions from the agenda. 

Moved by: J. Brennan 
Seconded by: J. d’Ailly 
(Carried) 

THAT the agenda for the General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting 
of May 23, 2014 be approved as circulated. 

5. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest: 

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest made in relation to the matters to be 
dealt with. 

6. Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 

General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting – May 8, 2014 

There were no questions or comments with respect to the minutes of the General 
Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting of May 8, 2014. 

Moved by: M. Laidlaw 
Seconded by: L. Boyko 
(Carried) 

THAT the minutes of the General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting 
of May 8, 2014 be approved as circulated. 



3 
 

7. Business Arising from Previous Minutes: 

Continuation of Discussion – Strategic Planning Questions 

J. Mitchell indicated that this item would be dealt with under Item 9 – Presentations. 

8. Hearing of Delegations: 

Hugh Handy, Associate, GSP Group Inc. Re: Potential Violation of Section 2(1), 
Regulation 150/06, Conservation Authorities Act – Part Lot 10, Concession 3, Township 
of Puslinch. 

H. Handy introduced himself as a Land Use Planner with GSP Group Inc. He indicated 
the following: 

 He was addressing the members on behalf of the owners of property municipally 
known as 4538 Side Road 10 North, Puslinch. 

 The potential violation relates to the construction of a 1,175 square foot accessory 
building. 

 Appropriate approvals and permits were not applied for prior to the 
commencement of construction. 

 Mr. Hasan constructed the building on a previously disturbed area of the site 
directly behind his home. 

 Mr. Hasan is a classic car collector and wishes to have a safe and secure building to 
house these vehicles. 

 There is no human habitation proposed for the structure. 

 He became involved with this matter following the issuance of a Building Code 
violation by the Township of Puslinch in December, 2013. 

 Further accessory buildings are not permitted in the Natural Environment Zone in 
which the property is located. 

 At the end of January, 2014 he arranged a meeting with GRCA, Township of 
Puslinch and County of Wellington staff with Mr. Hasan in attendance to discuss 
options to resolve this matter. 

 He was advised by GRCA staff to address the members to seek direction and relief 
from Section 8.1.10 of GRCA’s policies which permit a maximum size of building of 
1,076 square feet. 

 The property owner recognizes that he made a mistake in proceeding with 
construction without the necessary permits and approvals. 

 The property owners want to retain and finish construction of the structure and are 
prepared to go through the necessary approval process along with supporting 
documents and/or studies as required. 

 The structure will require a local zoning by-law amendment. 

 Other such structures have been permitted within the Natural Environment Zone in 
Puslinch. 



4 
 

 Construction ceased in December, 2013. 

 There is a loft area at the back of the structure for storage. 

 There are three access doors. 

J. Brennan requested clarification. He asked if the property owners had inquired about 
a permit from GRCA, been told they would require one and then commenced 
construction in any event. H. Handy responded in the affirmative. 

G. Lorentz asked if the property owners collect cars and wanted to store them in the 
structure. H. Handy responded in the affirmative. G. Lorentz said that there seemed to 
be a large number of windows in the structure. He asked what the purpose of so many 
windows was. Mr. Hasan answered that the windows were to allow light into the 
structure and to improve the appearance of the structure.  

W. Stauch also had an issue with the windows. He said that one window at the rear of 
the building is quite large. He asked if there are stairs to the loft. Mr. Hasan answered 
that there are stairs to the loft inside the building. W. Stauch asked if there is plumbing 
in the building. Mr. Hasan answered in the negative.  

M. Laidlaw asked why Mr. Hasan did not follow the regulations. He said he made a 
mistake. M. Laidlaw asked if he was hoping that no one would notice the construction. 
He said that such was probably his intention.  

J. Mitchell asked if the members would like to have a staff report regarding this matter 
at the next meeting. J. d’Ailly said he would like a report.  

*B. Lee joined the meeting at 9:45 a.m. 

9. Presentations: 

The Chair invited J. Farwell to continue his presentation with respect to the Strategic 
Plan. 

Issue 4 – Pace of Change in Legislation and 
Technology 

 There are frequently new or updated laws and regulations affecting GRCA. 

 Changes in Workplace Health and Safety regulations, the Accessibility for Ontarians with 
Disabilities Act (AODA) and changes to the Not for Profit Corporations legislation are a 
few that require training and in some cases capital investment. 

 Changes in technology present another type of challenge – the Geographic Information 
System (GIS) has permitted staff to keep pace with increased workload but further 
efficiencies will be difficult to achieve. 

 The park reservation system is another example of effective technology – although 
there is an outside provider for this service there is a significant workload for GRCA’s 
Information Technology (IT) staff to manage the system. 



5 
 

 As a public and accessible organization GRCA fields many requests to take action for 
water related matters that are the responsibility of other levels of government. 

In order to address these matters: 

 Training is ongoing. 

 Website rebuild is underway to expand online services. 

 WMP helps define water related role of GRCA. 

 J. Farwell posed this question to the members: “Are there program areas the members 
would like to see more or fewer resources allocated?” 

Issue 5 – Maintaining Awareness About GRCA in the 
Watershed 

 GRCA staff have contact with hundreds of thousands of people each year from day-
trippers to developers and anglers to academics. 

 While it is a good thing that many people know something about GRCA it also makes for 
a complex communications environment. 

 Tools used to communicate with constituents include: newsletters, pamphlets, 
brochures, signage, reports, news releases, media interviews, public meetings and 
presentations. 

 There are more channels, tools and vehicles than ever before and it is becoming difficult 
to cut through the clutter of the multi-media explosion. 

In order to address these matters: 

 New tools have been developed through social media. 

 Website rebuild is underway to expand online services. 

J. Farwell posed this question to the members: “What other communication tools and methods 
can be used to improve the public’s understanding of the roles of GRCA and the programs it 
offers? What resources are needed to take advantage of them?” 

L. Armstrong said that he believes GRCA is moving in the right direction by using social media 
but human contact must also be maintained.  

B. Banbury said that communicating in print is important.  

B. Bell said GRCA should advertise for walkers and hikers who could navigate trails with 
online maps using apps designed for personal communication devices. He would like 
staff to focus on this. 

L. Boyko said the role of members is to get the word out. He said that D. Boyd made a 
presentation to Haldimand council at a televised meeting. He said GRCA gets good 



6 
 

coverage in his area but it had to be driven by a member. He said the perception in the 
past has been that high water in Haldimand is caused by GRCA releasing water from the 
dams. 

J. Brennan said that he attended a presentation by a company that creates apps and he 
can get the contact information to GRCA staff. 

B. Coleman said that he has always believed that GRCA had a problem with 
communication with the public who think that the reservoirs are for recreation. 

T. Cowan said D. Schultz got a lot of press because of flooding but GRCA is about more 
than floods. He said GRCA is about campsites and recreation. He said the social 
network is free and then acknowledged that it is not totally free because staff 
resources are required. He wants staff to include information with respect to fire bans 
and events. He said the GRCA website does not show what is going on.  J. Mitchell said 
that there is more than flood messages on twitter and she often retweets GRCA 
messages. 

J. d’Ailly said that when staff hand out packages at parks they can talk to patrons about 
other things that the GRCA does. 

J. Haalboom said that she is glad that staff is rebuilding the GRCA website. She asked 
that staff ensure that it is user friendly with respect to mapping of flood lines so that 
fewer difficulties are encountered regarding permits. She also asked that the 
information be kept up to date. She asked if the public can access mapping details 
easily. She referred to a heritage registry and said some people are not interested in 
camping and fishing. 

J. Jamieson said “word of mouth” is the best advertising. She asked if patrons could be 
handed something to give to a friend. She felt this would be cheap in the long run. 

R. Kelterborn said communication should be simple, short and to the point. He recalled 
a PowerPoint presentation by L. Boyko when he was running for Chair of GRCA and said 
it was the best audio/visual information about GRCA he has seen. He suggested that 
GRCA “sell” itself by going to schools. 

M. Laidlaw referred to “electronic word of mouth” and “liking” and “sharing”. She 
asked how GRCA gets people to its Facebook page. She suggested that GRCA hire a 
company to optimize its internet presence to ensure that search engines direct users to 
GRCA. 

B. Lee felt the best publicity is the press and noted that there was none in the gallery 
for this meeting. He said people do not know what GRCA is until they do something and 
face its regulations. He said the press should be engaged and people need to know that 
GRCA enforces the Conservation Authorities Act. He said the Chair and senior staff 
should appear before municipal councils on a regular basis because the press is there. 
He recalled a large American sporting publication that did an article on how the river 
went from disaster to a most sought after fishery. 

G. Lorentz said he is not sure that GRCA is doing a bad job now. People enjoy the 
facilities and GRCA continues to gain ground. He said that GRCA has a good 
communications team who are always coming up with new ideas. He felt education is 



7 
 

important and people who want to get involved do get involved. He also said that the 
way people communicate is changing. 

C. Millar said some people are faced with the transition from high tech to what they 
had in the past. She said there is still a part of the population that is not high tech and 
GRCA cannot forget that group of people. 

T. Nevills said he wanted to speak to a perennial problem in Dufferin. He said his area is 
above the dams, has no park and has no education programs. He said is it difficult to 
convince the residents that Conservation Authorities have value. He suggested that 
GRCA get links from municipal websites to the GRCA website. 

V. Prendergast said communication is an unending process and communication with 
the public and councils has improved. He referred to apps on trails and said other 
partners can be worked with so that everyone is working with the same things. He felt 
GRCA was effective in communicating on the technical side however communications 
at council meetings is driven by the budget or a request from council. He said GRCA 
should establish a more structured communication with councils because meetings are 
televised. 

J. Ross-Zuj said that J. Farwell presented the WMP to Centre Wellington council and 
information material handed out was very well received. She said Centre Wellington is 
also rebuilding its website. She said the Township receives numerous calls regarding 
GRCA and she would like to put GRCA on its home page as a link. 

P. Salter said she agreed that municipal councils are important and do not understand 
what GRCA is about. She said people do not realize the importance of water control. 
She referred to the upcoming municipal election and new councilors. She said staff 
should prepare material in a plain language and provide it to councils. She noted that 
the members have not had a tour for some time and suggested a tour be arranged with 
media invited to see the parks. J. Farwell said that a tour can be arranged. 

W. Stauch said he sees the members as a watershed caucus and on June 12, 2014 he 
would like to see a watershed caucus of MPPs. He said he goes to candidates’ meetings 
and they do not know about GRCA. He said staff should initiate a watershed curriculum 
for every grade level. He referred to the outdoor education program and said that staff 
have done a good job. He asked that the members continue to support the Heritage 
Day Workshop as it is an opportunity to educate people about GRCA. He said GRCA’s 
website is excellent, encouraged bus tours and said that participation in Doors Open 
would be beneficial. 

G. Wicke agreed that high tech communication has left a lot of people behind. 

J. Mitchell referred to Twitter and Facebook and said that D. Schultz would resend the 
handles. She said she often retweets GRCA messages and writes blogs about GRCA. She 
said that every time The Grand is published she receives favourable comments.   

J. Mitchell called for questions on program areas. There were no questions. 

J. Farwell indicated that staff will present a report to the members with respect to any 
subsequent actions proposed. 



8 
 

10. Correspondence: 

a) Copies for members 

None 

b) Not copied 

None 

11. 1st and 2nd Reading of By-Laws: 

None 

12. Presentation of Reports: 

a) GM-05-14-49 Financial Summary for the Period Ending April 30, 2014 

In response to a previous inquiry S. Radoja displayed a pie chart depicting the 
application of the Ministry of Natural Resources (MNR) Section 39 Grant to GRCA 
programs. She indicated that the total grant received was $871,073 and was disbursed 
as follows: 

Schedule  Program Amount 

1  Watershed Planning $  33,200 

13  Administration $  70,000 

4  Water Control Structures $400,350 

3  Flood Forecasting and Warning $252,955 

5  Technical Studies - Mapping $  50,000 

5  Plan Input $  64,568 

Total   $871,073 

S. Radoja displayed a graph depicting MNR Section 39 Grant Funding vs. GRCA Expenses 
as follows: 

Program  Section 39 
Grant 

GRCA 
Expense 

Watershed Planning  $  33,200 $   443,000 

Administration  $  70,000 $3,158,357 

Water Control Structures  $400,350 $1,653,800 

Flood Forecasting and Warning  $252,955 $   916,400 

Technical Studies - Mapping  $  50,000 $   336,300 

Plan Input  $  64,568 $   799,650 

Totals  $817,073 $7,307,507 



9 
 

 

G. Wicke said that the graph showing the MNR grant versus GRCA expenses should be 
given to the politicians who get elected. J. Mitchell concurred. J. d’Ailly said that the 
province has to contribute more because it has an interest in water control and flood 
forecasting. J. Farwell said that the province also has an interest in the regulations. 

Resolution 62-14 

Moved by: J. Jamieson 
Seconded by: P. Salter 
(Carried) 

THAT the Financial Summary for the Period Ending April 30, 2014 be 
approved. 

b) GM-05-14-50 Cash and Investments Status Report as at April 30, 2014 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 63-14 

Moved by: J. d’Ailly 
Seconded by: L. Armstrong 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM 05-14-50 – Cash and Investments Status Report as at April 
30, 2014 be received as information. 

c) GM-05-14-51 Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines 
and Watercourses Regulation 

M. Laidlaw referred to Application 124/14 – A. Teymore. She quoted: “The work carried 
out satisfies the requirements of the City of Guelph Two Zone Flood Plain Policy”. She 
asked whether GRCA staff or City of Guelph staff would ensure that the work is done 
properly. F. Natolochny responded that both the GRCA and the City would have a role 
in ensuring that the work was completed in accordance with the policy.  

M. Laidlaw referred to Application 91/14 – Township of Centre Wellington and 
Application 99/14 – County of Wellington. She asked why there were different fishery 
concerns noted. F. Natolochny answered that the fishery restrictions were dependent 
upon the type of fish habitat and the spawning season for the particular species found 
there. 

M. Laidlaw referred to Application 133/14 – Lystek International Inc. She asked where 
Proton is located. F. Natolochny said that Proton is located near Dundalk. M. Laidlaw 
noted that the application involves two lined storage lagoons. She asked whether there 
are new methods for lining such lagoons to prevent leakage. F. Natolochny responded 
that the answer was not within his area of expertise. 

G. Lorentz referred to Application 137/14 – 2018867 Ontario Ltd. He asked to be told 
the names of the principals of the numbered company. F. Natolochy said that staff 



10 
 

could not provide that information and the company is a legal entity entitled to apply 
for a permit. G. Lorentz disagreed and said a member could have a conflict that was not 
declared.  He said the matter goes to transparency and staff could search the title to 
the property to determine who the principals are. 

Resolution 64-14 

Moved by: B. Banbury 
Seconded by: G. Wicke 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-05-14-51 – Development, Interference with Wetlands and 
Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation be received as 
information. 

d) GM-05-14-52 Environmental Assessments 

W. Stauch referred to Item 2 – Final Notice – Proposed Hofstetter Road Extension and 
Bridge Number 25 Closure Class Environmental Assessment, Township of Blandford-
Blenheim. He then referred to a magazine article and said that the road will be closed 
and the bridge removed. He noted that the Township was recommending that a steel 
component of the bridge be salvaged and incorporated into a plaque near the Nith 
River. 

Resolution 65-14 

Moved by: M. Laidlaw 
Seconded by: V.Prendergast 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-05-14-52 – Environmental Assessments be received as 
information. 

e) GM-05-14-53 Water Adaptation Management and Quality Initiative (WAMZI) – 
Project Update 

J. Etienne advised the members that: 

 GRCA is again partnering with the Brant and Oxford County Federations of 
Agriculture in 2014 to undertake a subsequent Water Adaptation Management 
and Quality Initiative pilot project regarding the Whiteman’s Creek Drought 
Contingency Pilot Project. 

 Drought contingency planning funds and technical support will be extended to 
water permit holders in the Whiteman’s subwatershed with the goal of 
conserving surface water and baseflow in the creek and reducing the impact of 
irrigation demands. 

 The project includes the completion of an innovative pond restoration which 
specifically targets water quality and habitat restoration in the Rest Acres Creek 
cold water fishery. 



11 
 

G. Wicke asked if the ponds used for irrigation would be refurbished with ground 
water. J. Etienne answered that the ponds do have the ability to recharge. 

Resolution 66-14 

Moved by: J. Brennan 
Seconded by: L. Armstrong 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-05-14-53 – Water Adaptation Management and Quality 
Initiative (WAMQI) – Project Update be received as information. 

f) GM-05-14-54 Current Watershed Conditions as at May 20, 2014 

S. Shifflett conducted a PowerPoint presentation indicating: 

 Precipitation in May, 2014 has been close to or above the long term average 
throughout the Grand River watershed. 

 The average air temperature in May, 2014 has been 11 degrees. 

 Overnight low temperatures have remained above freezing. 

 The last seven months including May, 2014 have had average temperatures 
below normal. 

 The level of Lake Erie is at long term average. 

 Reservoir levels at Shand, Conestogo, Luther and Guelph Dams are within the 
normal operating range for this time of year. 

 The large reservoirs were actively operated over the past month to maintain 
seasonal flood storage. 

 Reservoir operations will shift towards providing flow augmentation as flows in 
the lower watershed recede. 

 Environment Canada’s forecast for the May to July, 2014 period for southern 
Ontario is for normal temperatures and above normal temperatures near Lake 
Erie. 

 Environment Canada is forecasting normal precipitation for the May to July, 
2014 period. 

 GRCA issued a Watershed Conditions Statement – Water Safety Press Release 
on May 16, 2014 – the message focused on recreational use of the river during 
the May, 2014 long weekend. 

M. Laidlaw said that she noticed the water at the Guelph Dam was high around the 
beginning of May. S. Shifflett said that the high water resulted from a rain event. 



12 
 

Resolution 67-14 

Moved by: J. Haalboom 
Seconded by: L. Boyko 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-05-14-54 – Current Watershed Conditions as at May 20, 
2014 be received as information. 

13. Committee of the Whole: 

None 

14. General Business: 

None 

15. 3rd Reading of By-Laws: 

None 

16. Other Business: 

None 

17. Closed Meeting: (motion required pursuant to Section 36 of By-Law 1-2014) 

Resolution 68-13 

Moved by: J. Brennan 
Seconded by: J. d’Ailly 
(Carried) 

THAT the General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting of May 23, 2014 
adjourn  into closed session to discuss property and legal matters. 

The meeting adjourned at 11.10 a.m. 

The meeting reconvened at 11:20 a.m. 

a) GM-05-14-55 Grant of Easement – Regional Municipality of Waterloo 

Resolution 69-14 

Moved by: T. Cowan 
Seconded by: J. Brennan 
(Carried) 

IN ORDER TO FURTHER THE OBJECTS of the Grand River Conservation 
Authority by assisting a member municipality in improving transportation 
routes; 



13 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOVED THAT the Grand River Conservation Authority 
convey an easement over lands legally described as Part of Peter Horning’s 
Tract, City of Kitchener, municipally known as 70 Bridge Street East, more 
particularly described as Part 1 on Reference Plan 58R-18099, in favour of 
the Regional Municipality of Waterloo, for the purposes of installing a bus 
shelter and concrete pad. 

18. Next Meetings: 

General Membership Meeting 

Friday, June 27, 2014 – 9:30 a.m. 

Auditorium/Boardroom, Administration Centre, Cambridge 

General Membership Meeting 

Friday, July 25, 2014 – 9:30 a.m. 

Auditorium/Boardroom, Administration Centre, Cambridge 

19. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 11:25 a.m. 

20. Grand River Source Protection Authority Meeting (if required) 
 
 

Chair Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 

 



1 
 

 
Grand River Conservation Authority 

General Membership Meeting 

Friday, June 27, 2014 

 

 

The following are the minutes of the General Membership Meeting held at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, 
June 27, 2014 at the Administration Center, Cambridge, Ontario. 

Members Present: 

J. Mitchell, Chair, L. Armstrong, B. Banbury, B. Bell, L. Boyko*, J. Brennan, B. Coleman, T. 
Cowan*, J. d’Ailly, R. Deutschmann, J. Haalboom, R. Kelterborn, M. Laidlaw*, B. Lee, G. Lorentz, 
T. Nevills, V. Prendergast, P. Salter, S. Schmitt, W. Stauch*, G. Wicke 

Members Regrets: 

R. Hillier, J. Jamieson, C. Millar, F. Morison, J. Ross-Zuj 

Staff: 

J. Farwell, K. Murch, D. Bennett, D. Boyd, N. Davy, K. Armstrong, J. Griffin, S. Lawson, S. Radoja, 
C. Allen, B. Brown,  S. Cooke, H. Kovacs, C. Linwood, G. MacMillan,  B. Parrott,  L. Reinhardt, S. 
Wilbur 

Also Present: 

M. Hopkins, J. Battler, C. Kego, B. Waller, H. Handy 
 

1. Call to Order: 

J. Mitchell, Chair, called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

2. Roll Call and Certification of Quorum – 13 members constitute a quorum  
(1/2 of members appointed by participating municipalities) 

The Secretary-Treasurer called the roll and certified a quorum with 17 members 
present. A total of 21 members attended the meeting. 

3. Chair’s Remarks: 

J. Mitchell welcomed members, staff and guests and made the following comments: 



2 
 

 On May 25, 2014 J. Mitchell brought greetings to the participants in a canoe trip 
on the Grand River from Cambridge to Paris that was sponsored by the Grand 
River Conservation Foundation (GRCF). 

 On June 5, 2014 J. Mitchell and J. Farwell attended a Lake Erie Region Source 
Protection Committee meeting. Agenda topics included an update on the status 
of various Source Protection Plans and a Lake Erie Water Quality update for 
Long Point Region Conservation Authority, Region of Waterloo and the City of 
Guelph. 

 The GRCF held its annual General Meeting on June 18, 2014 at which time the 
2014 Allan Holmes Scholarship, 2014 SC Johnson Environmental Scholarship and 
2014 McEwen Clean Water Prize were announced. 

 On June 23, 2014 J. Mitchell and J. Farwell attended a Conservation Ontario 
meeting. Agenda items included Conservation Ontario’s draft comments on the 
proposed 8th Canada-Ontario Agreement on Great Lakes Water Quality and 
Ecosystem Health and draft comments on the Provincial Fish Strategy for 
Ontario. 

 J. Mitchell congratulated J. Ross-Zuj who was recently re-elected to the Board of 
Directors for the Federation of Canadian Municipalities and re-elected to the 
position of its Ontario Caucus Chair. 

 A copy of the Spring 2014 edition of The Grand was included in the members 
agenda packages. Major articles related to the 20th Anniversary of the Heritage 
River designation, the 1974 flood and the Grand River Watershed Water 
Management Plan. 

 J. Mitchell congratulated C. Millar who was inducted into the Cambridge Hall of 
Fame earlier this month. The Hall of Fame was created for the purpose of 
honoring people and organizations who through their work and dedication have 
made the community a better place in which to live. 

 J. Mitchell advised the members that L. Reinhardt is retiring from GRCA after 
almost 30 years. He started his career at GRCA in 1984 as the Administrative 
Assistant. In 1990 he was appointed Manager of Finance and held that position 
until 1999. In 1999 he was appointed Chief Accountant.  

*L. Boyko, T. Cowan and M. Laidlaw joined the meeting at 9:35 

4. Review of Agenda: 

J. Mitchell indicated that Report GM-06-14-65 – Off-Leash Dog Issues – Snyder’s Flats 
would be presented following Item 8 – Hearing of Delegations. 

Moved by:  J. Haalboom 
Seconded by: B. Coleman 
(Carried) 

THAT the agenda for the General Membership Meeting of June 27, 2014 be 
approved as amended. 



3 
 

5. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest: 

J. Haalboom declared a pecuniary interest with respect to Permit Application #174/14 – 
Ariana Haalboom and Brian McInnes as the applicants are members of her family. 

6. Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 

General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting – May 23, 2014 

There were no questions or comments with respect to the minutes of the General 
Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting of May 23, 2014. 

Moved by: L. Armstrong 
Seconded by: J. Brennan 
(Carried) 

THAT the Minutes of the General Membership/Strategic Planning Meeting 
of May 23, 2014 be approved as circulated. 

7. Business Arising from Previous Minutes: 

None 

8. Hearing of Delegations: 

M. Hopkins introduced himself to the members and said the following: 

 He has been walking his dog off-leash at Snyder’s Flats on a daily basis for five 
years. 

 “Sanctuary” is a perfect term to describe Snyder’s Flats. 

 Bechtel  Park is only five acres in size, has no water, no shade, no flat walking 
area and is a small/confined space. 

 Kiwanis Park is approximately five acres in size, has no water, it is a one 
kilometer walk from the parking lot and the park is closed from December to 
March. 

 He considers McLennan Park to be a “dog run”. 

*W. Stauch joined the meeting at 9:40 a.m. 

 Because he is a realtor he reviewed comparable areas. 

 Snyder’s Flats is 240 acres in size, has flat paths for walking, has shaded areas, 
has natural borders so there is no need for fencing, is separated from residential 
areas, has benches and water. 

 Calgary has 150 off-leash parks totaling 3, 400 acres. 

 London has five off-leash parks, two of which have water. 

 Toronto has two off-leash parks with access to Lake Ontario. 

 His MPP has said that the government can alter Regulation 106 to give the 
Grand River Conservation Authority (GRCA) more power to develop its own 
policies to bring it in line with Section 29 of the Conservation Authorities Act. 



4 
 

 People have been using Snyder’s Flats as an off-leash park for seven to ten 
years. 

 He wants a “site specific change” for Snyder’s Flats and he wants to work with 
GRCA and the province to change the legislation. 

 He denied the stigma regarding dogs affecting wildlife because he has not seen 
it. 

 He has spoken with a number of people who have walked their dogs off-leash at 
Snyder’s Flats. 

T. Cowan asked if the delegate had visited other off-leash areas outside the Region of 
Waterloo. The delegate answered that he has been to Calgary. T. Cowan asked the 
delegate whether he has witnessed any issues with other dogs. The delegate said he has 
witnessed one issue. T. Cowan asked if people clean up after their dogs. The delegate 
answered in the affirmative. 

J. Battler introduced herself to the members and said the following: 

 She is a Waterloo Region resident and her dog is eight years old. 

 She has been walking her dog at Snyder’s Flats since the dog was a puppy. 

 She and her dog have gone to other off-leash areas and her dog has been 
attacked at every one of them. 

 Her dog has never been attacked at Snyder’s Flats. 

 She has not taken her dog to Snyder’s Flats since enforcement has been 
increased. 

 Her dog is a hound dog and it does not chase wildlife. 

 She has 300 signatures on a petition and 750 “likes” on Facebook in favour of 
off-leash dogs at Snyder’s Flats. 

 She asked the members to reconsider enforcement of the leash laws. 

R. Deutschmann asked where the delegate lived. She responded that she lives in 
Kitchener.  R. Deutschmann asked whether the delegate had approached the City about 
off-leash dog parks. She said that she had but did not get a response. She said her 
experiences at off-leash parks had not been positive and her dog was attacked at 
Bechtel Park. R. Deutschmann asked the delegate if she was suggesting this could not 
happen at Snyder’s Flats.  

L. Boyko referred to dogs not chasing wildlife and asked if the dogs were using the 
ponds. The delegate said that dogs were using the pond and they are referred to as 
“doggy beaches”. L. Boyko asked if the delegate received a copy of the staff report. The 
delegate indicated that she obtained a copy today. 

J. Mitchell referred to the number of communications received and said that not all 
were from people in favour of off-leash dog walking. R. Deutschmann asked why the 
members did not receive copies of the communications. K. Murch said that any 
communication that was asked to be directed to the members was so directed. R. 
Deutschmann said that staff should not limit the members’ access to communications 



5 
 

because they should know what the public has to say and they would be better 
informed members. He said GRCA has to reconsider its policy on the issue of limiting the 
members’ access to communications because all he knew was that there were two 
people who showed up saying they want the area to be off-leash. 

a) GM-06-14-65 Off-Leash Dog Issues – Snyder’s Flats 

D. Bennett conducted a PowerPoint presentation and said the following: 

 The Snyder’s Flats property is located west of Bloomingdale in Woolwich 
Township. 

 The property was purchased by GRCA in 1969. 

 GRCA entered into an agreement with Preston Sand and Gravel to extract gravel 
in 1979. 

 A partnership to rehabilitate the area for wildlife habitat was formed in 1987. 

 There is both warm water and cool water habitat ponds on the property. 

 The property is comprised of 238 acres of passive recreation area. 

 The rehabilitation included the creation of 42 acres of pond and floodplain 
habitat. 

 More than 42,000 trees and shrubs have been planted on the property. 

 The area now displays a wide diversity of fish and wildlife species. 

 In 2008 the Kitchener Conestoga Rotary Club donated a portion of the proceeds 
from its Dream Home Lottery (approximately $182,000) to create the Snyder’s 
Flats Rotary Forest. 

 Another $25,000 was donated by the Good Foundation. 

 A large number of community groups have contributed time and effort to 
establish the diverse wildlife habitat in the area. 

 A controlled burn was undertaken to create a floodplain meadow; grasslands 
and wildflowers were planted; bird boxes were installed; trails were created and 
interpretive signage, benches and kiosks were installed. 

 Community partners include the Kitchener Conestoga Rotary Club, Trees 
Ontario, Waterloo Catholic District School Board, Waterloo Region District 
School Board, Royal Bank of Canada, Township of Woolwich Environmental 
Enhancement Committee, Region of Waterloo – Environmental Champions 
Program, C.R.E.W. Geocaching Group and the First Mennonite Church. 

 GRCA recently received a complaint from members of the public indicating that 
off-leash dogs at Snyder’s Flats had frightened their young children. 

 In response to this complaint it was decided to increase the level of 
enforcement at Snyder’s Flats. 

 Prior to starting this enforcement a press release was issued to notify the public 
that increased enforcement would be taking place. 



6 
 

 The press release and subsequent enforcement activities have generated a large 
number of communications from the public both in support of and in opposition 
to the increased enforcement. 

 Since the date of the complaint GRCA staff have visited the site on nine 
occasions and seven charges have been laid for off-leash dogs, three trespass 
bans were issued and 21 people received warnings for swimming in the ponds. 

 Off-leash dogs have the potential to impact wildlife habitat by removal of 
fisheries habitat through destruction of shoreline vegetation; disturbance of 
ground nesting birds (i.e. bobolink and eastern meadowlark) and injury to small 
mammals. 

 Off-leash dogs have potential impact on the public because of the potential for 
uncontrolled dogs to injure a person or another animal; many people have a 
fear of large animals, especially small children; reduction in the desirability of 
the area for non-dog walking public. 

 There are four municipally operated off-leash dog parks in Waterloo Region and 
six in Guelph. 

T. Cowan said he had a problem with staff concerns regarding wildlife when the 
property was a gravel pit in 1979. He asked how the members could make a decision 
without reviewing all of the communications and why Woolwich Township was not 
informed of the enforcement. He said the Township should have been consulted. D. 
Bennett said that staff would not normally contact a municipality concerning 
enforcement. He also said that through the press release and media coverage people 
should have been aware of the GRCA’s intention to enforce the regulation. T. Cowan 
said that the press release was insufficient and therefore unacceptable. 

M. Laidlaw agreed that the members should see all communications regarding this 
matter and asked that they be sent to the members electronically. K. Murch agreed that 
this would be done. M. Laidlaw said that she wanted to know whether the 
communications were heavily in favour of off-leash dogs. She said that GRCA could 
consider fencing a “good sized” portion of the property with access to water for off-
leash dogs and install signage. 

R. Deutschmann said that this issue is governed by the Conservation Authorities Act and 
the members do not have any discretion regarding it. D. Bennett said that while walking 
off-leash dogs is a prohibited act GRCA could allow it under a permit. R. Deutschmann 
said Woolwich Township has a by-law with respect to this issue and asked if the 
Township was changing its by-law. R. Deutschmann asked if the members can 
supersede the Township by-law. D. Bennett said that he did not know the answer. R. 
Deutschmann asked if Woolwich Township has an off-leash park. D. Bennett responded 
in the negative. R. Deutschmann asked whether GRCA has had any claims against it 
concerning off-leash dogs. K. Murch responded that he did not recall any such claims at 
Snyder’s Flats but there had been incidents at other GRCA properties. R. Deutschmann 
expressed concern about GRCA’s liability should someone be hurt because dogs are off-
leash.  

J. Haalboom said the legislation gives GRCA the authority to enforce the regulation. She 
referred to meadow larks and bobolink and said that it was refreshing to see habitat 



7 
 

that supports threatened species. She said that the Grand River is a source of drinking 
water and GRCA worked hard to convince farmers to keep livestock out of water. She 
asked whether the ponds feed into the Grand River or are self-contained. D. Bennett 
said the ponds are designed to flood in spring and are used as fish nurseries. He said the 
north pond is not connected to the river but the others are. 

J. d’Ailly said there are two issues and he understood the impact on wildlife. He wanted 
information as to whether there could be a compromise where dogs could be able to 
run. He said the second issue is how to separate a dog free area from a non-dog free 
area. 

J. Brennan said there has been a long history of people using this area without incident. 
He said a compromise should be explored and stopping off-leash dogs arbitrarily does 
not make sense to him. He wanted staff to consider use of the area by everyone. 

G. Lorentz asked if the members would be dealing with this issue today. J. Mitchell said 
she would be recommending that another staff report be presented. G. Lorentz said 
that he had taken his dog to other parks and the municipalities have shirked their 
responsibilities. He said off-leash dog parks are not GRCA’s mandate and GRCA is 
responsible for wildlife. He then said if off-leash dogs are permitted at Snyder’s Flats 
GRCA would have to open the entire watershed to this activity. He expressed concern 
for wildlife. 

V. Prendergast said the members’ comments made sense especially concerning 
consultation. He said municipalities have to provide off-leash parks and the members 
should direct staff to go back and consult with municipalities because the issue would 
be broader than Snyder’s Flats. He agreed that off-leash parks are outside of the GRCA’s 
mandate. 

*J. d’Ailly left the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 

W. Stauch said he owns a dog and walks it off-leash whenever he can. 

J. Mitchell said there are bigger problems on GRCA properties than whether dogs are on 
a leash. She said Snyder’s Flats is a passive area and two staff from Laurel Creek who 
already have full-time jobs have to go there for enforcement. She said there are various 
problems such as partying and garbage. She asked if GRCA should turn this activity into 
a revenue generating opportunity for passive areas. She then said staff resources are 
being taken from the people who pay to use Laurel Creek. She said she is neutral about 
off-leash dogs and asked for a staff report. She also agreed that the members should 
have all communications regarding this issue because it is very contentious.  

* B. Coleman left the meeting at 10:35 a.m. 

G. Wicke said he did not see the elevation of the property and noted that the ponds are 
flooded in spring. He said fences and ice are not compatible and staff should look at 
whether there is any suitable area to conduct this activity. 

B. Lee expressed concern that the members would permit this activity at other 
properties such as Starkey Hills. He said off-leash parks are a municipal responsibility 
and the municipalities should deal with the problems that result from them. 

L. Armstrong asked how long Snyder’s Flats has been leash-free and whether any 
studies had been done on the effect on wildlife. D. Bennett said he did not know how 



8 
 

long this activity had been going on and the impact on wildlife would be difficult to 
describe because staff have not done any surveys. L. Armstrong said that he did not 
think off-leash dogs would have a serious impact on wildlife and staff should do a 
survey. 

M. Laidlaw said that the area has been off-leash for eight or nine years and the wild 
animals may be used to the dogs. She said dogs do not defecate or urinate in water and 
do not disturb birds or animals dependent upon the dog. She said the GRCA cannot shift 
its problems to municipalities. She admitted that she lets her dog off -leash to swim in 
the Speed River and she does not think the issue will go watershed wide. She said the 
members can make rules for this particular park and the enforcement is based on a 
single complaint. 

T. Cowan said Woolwich Township hopes to open a dog park this summer and Waterloo 
Region parks have not been designed well. He said Snyder’s Flats is the perfect place for 
a dog park and GRCA should seek donations from the public. He said letting the 
Township know about increased enforcement by press release was inadequate. He said 
GRCA’s mandate was not tubing either. He said the area should be revenue generating 
to be kept clean and staff should review all conservation areas. 

T. Nevills said staff should not overplay habitat impacts when dealing with issues. He 
referred to Luther Marsh and hunting and asked if dogs are off-leash when hunting. He 
referred to dog trials at Luther Marsh and said the dogs are not leashed. He said Luther 
Marsh is also being restored for bobolink. He recalled touring Conestogo Lake and being 
shown grassland habitat but 30 years ago GRCA planted tree breaks to hide the hunters 
so they could shoot pheasant and deer. He wanted to see a compromise that would 
serve all of the public. 

L. Armstrong referred to parties and asked if the police were called. D. Bennett said that 
police officers would not enter the property if 30 or 40 people were partying and 
neither would GRCA staff. 

P. Salter asked the members not to make any hasty decisions. 

G. Lorentz said that until now Snyder’s Flats has been a best kept secret and while it is a 
paradise for dogs it is also a paradise for children. He said if off-leash dogs are allowed 
there will be so many animals there will be no habitat. 

Resolution 70-14 
Moved by: V. Prendergast 
Seconded by: G. Wicke 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-65 be received as information. 

9. Presentations: 

None 



9 
 

10. Correspondence: 

a) Copies for Members 

i) Correspondence from K. Jean Hughes, Secretary-Treasurer, Grand Valley & District 
Fire Board to Joe Farwell, P.Eng., CAO, Grand River Conservation Authority dated 
May 26, 2014 Re: Luther Marsh 

ii) Correspondence from Joe Farwell, P.Eng., Chief Administrative Officer, Grand 
River Conservation Authority to K. Jean Hughes, Secretary-Treasurer, Grand Valley 
& District Fire Board dated May 29, 2014 Re: Luther Marsh Wildlife Management 
Area (Luther Marsh) – Emergency Response Plan 

iii) Email Communication from Penelope Polyzou to Jane Mitchell, Chair, Grand River 
Conservation Authority dated June 13, 2014 Re: Free-roaming Dogs Not Welcome 
– June 5 

b) Not copied 

None 

Moved by: J. Brennan 
Seconded by: B. Banbury 
(Carried) 

THAT correspondence from K. Jean Hughes, Secretary-Treasurer, Grand 
Valley & District Fire Board to Joe Farwell, P.Eng., CAO, Grand River 
Conservation Authority dated May 26, 2014 Re: Luther Marsh; 
correspondence from Joe Farwell, P.Eng., Chief Administrative Officer, 
Grand River Conservation Authority to K. Jean Hughes, Secretary-Treasurer, 
Grand Valley & District Fire Board dated May 29, 2014 Re: Luther Marsh 
Wildlife Management Area (Luther Marsh) – Emergency Response Plan and 
the email Communication from Penelope Polyzou to Jane Mitchell, Chair, 
Grand River Conservation Authority dated June 13, 2014 Re: Free-roaming 
Dogs Not Welcome – June 5 be received as information. 

11. 1st and 2nd Reading of By-Laws: 

None 

12. Presentation of Reports: 

a) GM-06-14-57  Financial Summary for the Period Ending May 31, 2014 

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 71-14 
Moved by: M. Laidlaw 
Seconded by: T. Cowan 
(Carried) 

THAT the Financial Summary for the Period Ending May 31, 2014 be 
approved. 



10 
 

 GM-06-14-58  Designation of Provincial Offences Officers  b)

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 72-14 
Moved by: L. Boyko 
Seconded by: P. Salter 
(Carried) 

THAT the Grand River Conservation Authority designate Andrew Jamieson, 
Michael Armstrong, Noel Johnson, Jan Willem Laros and Wesley Organ as 
Provincial Offences Act officers. 

c) GM-06-14-59  Endorsement of the Grand River Watershed Water Management Plan 

S. Cooke conducted a PowerPoint presentation entitled “A Plan for the Grand – An 
Integrated Collaborative Approach for Managing a Shared Water Resource” and 
indicated the following: 

 The Grand River watershed (the watershed) flows from Dundalk to Lake Erie and 
has four major tributaries including the Speed River, Eramosa River, Nith River 
and Conestogo River. 

 There are 30 wastewater treatment plants in the watershed and most land is 
actively farmed. 

 Critical issues relating to the watershed include population growth, extensive 
agriculture and climate change. 

 The Grand River Watershed Management Plan (the WMP) is a voluntary, joint 
plan among municipalities, First Nations, GRCA, Ontario ministries and Federal 
agencies. 

 There is enough water now and for the future but there is a need to be diligent 
in planning for future water needs. 

 Water use is sustainable but efficient water use by all sectors is encouraged. 

 Reservoir operating strategies provide sufficient flows for environmental, 
municipal and wastewater needs. 

 Although not limited by supply there are areas of constraint or conflict – 
proactive drought contingency planning will ease the constraint. 

 Both point and non-point sources of pollution are important and must be 
managed. 

 A commitment to wastewater treatment upgrades and optimization will 
improve water quality. 

 Non-point sources of pollution will continue to be a challenge – rural water 
quality and urban stormwater programs will make a difference. 

 Future opportunities to improve water quality may be found by removing old 
dams or modifying their operation. 



11 
 

 Much has been done for effective and efficient flood management – dams and 
dikes have reduced flood damages by 80%. 

 Asset management is imperative – ongoing investments are needed to ensure 
the sustainability of flood infrastructure. 

 The WMP manages water on a watershed basis with a focus on people. 

 The WMP has acted as a mechanism to strengthen partnerships. 

 Best value solutions promote a healthy economy. 

 GRCA staff are asking the members to endorse the updated WMP as a Plan of 
Best Practices and to continue to support and facilitate the Implementation 
Committee and the Water Managers Working Group to report on the progress 
of the implementation of actions outlined in the WMP. 

P. Salter and L. Boyko commended S. Cooke with respect to her presentation of the 
Water Management Plan at the municipal councils that they represent. 

G. Wicke noted that only seven dams were shown on the watershed map.  He said 
GRCA has more dams than that. He also said that he was surprised Woolwich Dam and 
Laurel Creek were shown.  S. Cooke said the seven dams shown are identified as water 
management structures. 

Resolution 73-14 
Moved by: T. Cowan 
Seconded by: J. Haalboom 
(Carried) 

THAT the Grand River Conservation Authority members endorse the 
updated Grand River Watershed Water Management Plan as a Plan of Best 
Practices; 

AND THAT Grand River Conservation Authority agrees to continue to 
support and facilitate the Implementation Committee and the Water 
Managers Working Group to report on the progress of implementation of 
actions outlined in the Plan. 

 GM-06-14-60  Grand River Conservation Foundation Member Appointments d)

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 74-14 
Moved by: L. Boyko 
Seconded by: W. Stauch 
(Carried) 

THAT the following new member be appointed to the Grand River 
Conservation Foundation for a term of three years (renewable for two 
further three year terms): 

 Wayne Fyfe 



12 
 

AND THAT the following new member be appointed to the Grand River 
Conservation Foundation for a term of two years (renewable for two further 
three year terms): 

 James den Ouden 

AND THAT the following members be re-appointed to the Grand River 
Conservation Foundation for a term of three years (renewable for one 
further three year term): 

 Bob Desautels 

 Wayne Knox 

AND THAT the following members be re-appointed to the Grand River 
Conservation Foundation for a term of three years: 

 David Hales 

 Ian MacNaughton 

 GM-06-14-61 Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines e)

and Watercourses Regulation 

M. Laidlaw referred to Permit Application #202/14 – Tony and Lynn Stajcer. She said she 
thought that there was supposed to be a buffer around a wetland and this project is 
only one metre away. F. Natolochny said that the driveway is one metre from the 
wetland and the house is 30 metres from the wetland.  

Mr. Laidlaw referred to Permit Applications #214/14 – Rasheed Khalid and #215/14 – 
William Foote. She asked what the normal processing fee would be. F. Natolochny said 
that the fee would have been $380.00 but because the projects were started without 
permits the applicants were charged $540.00. 

J. Mitchell reminded the members that they would vote with respect to this report to 
the exclusion of Permit Application #174/14 – Ariana Haalboom and Brian McInnes.  

Resolution 75-14 
Moved by: R. Kelterborn 
Seconded by: M. Laidlaw 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-61 Development, Interference with Wetlands and 
Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation with the exclusion of 
Permit Application #174/14 – Ariana Haalboom and Brian McInnis be 
received as information. 

J. Mitchell called for the vote relating to Permit Application #174/74 – Ariana Haalboom 
and Brian McInnes. J. Haalboom refrained from voting 

Resolution 76-14 
Moved by: V. Prendergast 
Seconded by: J. Brennan 
(Carried) 



13 
 

THAT Report GM-06-14-61 Development, Interference with Wetlands and 
Alterations to Shorelines and Watercourses Regulation as it relates to 
Permit Application #174/14 – Ariana Haalboom and Brian McInnis be 
received as information. 

 GM-08-14-62 Environmental Assessments f)

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 77-14 
Moved by: L. Armstrong 
Seconded by: T. Cowan 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-62 – Environmental Assessments be received as 
information. 

 GM-06-14-63 Cash and Investments Status Report as of May 31, 2014 g)

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 78-14 
Moved by: L. Boyko 
Seconded by: G. Wicke 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-63 – Cash and Investments Status Report as of May 
31, 2014 be received as information. 

 GM-06-14-64 Hasan Violation – Part Lot 10, Concession 3, Township of Puslinch h)

F. Natolochny conducted a PowerPoint presentation indicating that: 

 On December 31, 2008 GRCA staff advised Mr. and Mrs. Hasan that the 
subject property was regulated in response to a purchase inquiry. 

 On January 29, 2010 an inquiry of staff was received from Mr. Hasan 
regarding a proposed building at approximately the same location as the 
shed that existed on the property. 

 In response to this inquiry Mr. Hasan was advised in writing of the 
regulation, permit requirements and policies. 

 On December 9, 2013 GRCA staff were advised that a building had been 
constructed on the site. 

 On December 17, 2013 staff attended on site with Mr. Hason and 
confirmed that a building had been constructed without the required 
permit. 

 On January 10, 2014 staff issued a violation notice to Mr. and Mrs. Hasan. 

 The new structure is within the area regulated by GRCA. 

 The building is approximately three to five metres from an on-line pond and 
five to ten metres from the edge of a wetland. 



14 
 

 The size of the building is 1166 square feet. 

 Rural residential accessory structures may be approved up to 1076 square 
feet. 

 Staff have met with Mr. Hasan and his representative and recommended 
removal or reduction in the size of the structure to conform with the policy 
to resolve the situation. 

 It is the intention of staff to proceed in this matter following the 
regulations. 

W. Stauch said he had a problem with the reference to the structure as a shed because 
it is a garage that will house restored vehicles.  

J. Brennan said charging one and one-half times the fee would make these actions seem 
inadvertent. He said Mr. Hasan was told twice that he needed a permit and he 
undertook a flagrant violation. He asked that a strong stance be taken.  

J. Mitchell asked what would happen if a charge was laid. F. Natolochny said that staff 
would swear an information before a Justice of the Peace, Mr. and Mrs. Hasan would be 
served and the matter would proceed to a Court hearing. He said the Court could issue 
a remediation order and impose a fine.  

G. Wicke noted that Mr. and Mrs. Hason had constructed the building without a GRCA 
permit. He asked whether they had a permit from the municipality. F. Natalochny 
answered that it was his understanding that they did not have a municipal permit. 

Resolution 79-14 
Moved by: L. Armstrong 
Seconded by: T. Cowan 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-64 – Hasan Violation – Part Lot 10, Concession 3, 
Township of Puslinch be received as information. 

 GM-06-14-66 Apps’ Mill Nature Centre Renovations i)

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 80-14 
Moved by: V. Prendergast 
Seconded by: S. Schmitt 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-66 – Apps’ Mill Nature Centre Renovations be 
received as information. 

 GM-06-14-67 Current Watershed Conditions as of June 24, 2014 j)

D. Boyd indicated the following: 

 Until June 24, 2014 precipitation has been below the long term average 
throughout the watershed. 



15 
 

 Rainfall near the end of the reporting period had greater watershed 
coverage but was not included in the report because it was not available for 
analysis when the report was prepared. 

 The average air temperature has been approximately one degree above the 
long term average at the Shand Dam climate station. 

 The level of Lake Erie is above the long term average. 

 Reservoir levels at Shand, Conestogo, Luther and Guelph Dams are within 
normal operating range for this time of year. 

 Environment Canada forecasts normal temperatures and precipitation for 
the June to August, 2014 period. 

M. Laidlaw referred to Figure 6 in the report and asked if “augmentation” meant adding 
water. D Boyd responded in the affirmative. 

Resolution 81-14 
Moved by: J. Brennan 
Seconded by: M. Laidlaw 
(Carried) 

THAT Report GM-06-14-67 – Current Watershed Conditions as of June 24, 
2014 be received as information. 

13. Committee of the Whole: 

None 

14. General Business: 

SR-06-14-01 Report of the Special Recognition Committee – Grand River Watershed 
Awards  

There were no questions or comments with respect to this report. 

Resolution 82-14 
Moved by: P. Salter 
Seconded by: W. Stauch 
(Carried) 

THAT Report SR-06-14-01 – Report of the Special Recognition Committee – 
Grand River Watershed Awards be received as information. 

15. 3rd Reading of By-Laws: 

None 

16. Other Business: 



16 
 

W. Stauch said that a small scale Heritage Workshop is being organized for October 3, 
2014 at the Arthur Historical Society. He also said that the 2015 Heritage Day Workshop 
will be held at the York Lands in Guelph. 

G. Wicke commended GRCA staff who contributed to the Spring issue of The Grand. 

17. Closed Meeting: (motion required pursuant to Section 36 of By-Law 1-2013) 

Resolution 83-14 
Moved by: L. Armstrong 
Seconded by: M. Laidlaw 
(Carried) 

THAT the meeting adjourn into closed session to discuss property and 
labour relations matters. 

The meeting adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 

The meeting reconvened at 11:50 a.m. 

a) GM-06-14- 68 Amendment to Land Exchange – Parkhill Road West, City of 

Cambridge (Confidential) 

Resolution 84-14 
Moved by: V. Prendergast 
Seconded by: P. Salter 
(Carried) 

THAT Res. No. 37-14 - Land Exchange- Parkhill Road West, City of 
Cambridge, previously adopted, be amended to now read:  

IN ORDER to further the objects of the Grand River Conservation 
Authority by ensuring a continuous land assembly for public access 
along the Grand River in the City of Cambridge; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Grand River Conservation 
Authority declare surplus and convey to the City of Cambridge those 
lands legally described as Lots 1A to 7A both inclusive, and 1B to 7B 
both inclusive and Part of Canal Lot and Part of Victoria Street, 
Registered Plan 444, formerly in the City of Galt, now in the City of 
Cambridge and Regional Municipality of Waterloo, more particularly 
described as Parts 1, 2 ,3 and 4 on Reference Plan 58R-18019, 
including an easement in the favor of the Grand River Conservation 
Authority for Parts 1 and 3 of Reference Plan 58R-18019, for the 
purpose of activities related to flood control and access, for the 
consideration of $2.00; 

AND THAT the Grand River Conservation Authority accept, in 
exchange, those lands legally described as Part of Lot 14, Plan D-9, 
City of Cambridge, more particularly described as Parts 21 to 25 on 
Reference Plan 58R-16766 and;  Part of Lot 14, Plan D-9, City of 
Cambridge,  more particularly described as Parts 2, 3, 4, 6 and 11 



17 
 

on Reference Plan 67R-1500, save and except Parts 12 and 13 on 
Reference Plan 58R-12603, Parts 1 and 2 on Reference Plan 67R-
1550 and Parts 12 to 14, 21 to 29, 32 to 34, 36, 40, 42 to 49, 53, 54 
and 55 on Reference Plan 58R-16766, including an easement in 
favour of Pearle Hospitality Inc. for Part 10, 23, 24 and 25 on 
Reference Plan 58R-16766 for the consideration of $2.00. 

b) GM-06-14- 69 Report of the Labour Relations Steering Committee (Confidential) 

Resolution 85-14 

Moved by: L. Armstrong 

Seconded by: T. Nevills 

(Carried) 

THAT the Grand River Conservation Authority ratifies the Collective 
Agreement as negotiated with OPSEU Local 259 for the period January 1 to 
December 31, 2014; 

AND THAT the Human Resources Policies be amended to incorporate the 
applicable changes for non-union staff. 

18. Next Meetings: 

 General Membership Meeting 
Friday, July 25, 2014 – 9:30 a.m. 
Auditorium/Boardroom, Administration Centre, Cambridge 

 General Membership 
Friday, August 22, 2014 – 9:30 a.m. 
Auditorium/Boardroom, Administration Centre, Cambridge 

19. Adjourn 

The meeting adjourned at 11:55 a.m. 

20. Grand River Source Protection Authority Meeting (if required) 
 
 

Chair Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 

 



July 2014  •  Volume 19, Number 7

GRCA General Membership

Chair Jane Mitchell

Vice-Chair Vic Prendergast

Townships of Amaranth, East
Garafraxa, Melancthon and South-
gate and Town of Grand Valley

Tom Nevills 

Townships of Mapleton 
and Wellington North Pat Salter 

Township of Centre Wellington 
Joanne Ross-Zuj

Town of Erin, Townships of
Guelph/Eramosa and Puslinch

John Brennan

City of Guelph
Bob Bell, Maggie Laidlaw

Region of Waterloo
Les Armstrong, Todd Cowan, 

Jan d’Ailly, Rob Deutschmann,
Jean Haalboom, Ross Kelterborn,

Geoff Lorentz, Claudette Miller,
Jane Mitchell, Warren Stauch

Municipality of North Perth 
and Township of Perth East 

George Wicke

Halton Region J. Barry Lee

City of Hamilton Jeanette Jamieson

Oxford County Bruce Banbury

County of Brant
Brian Coleman, Steve Schmitt

City of Brantford 
Robert Hillier, Vic Prendergast

Haldimand and Norfolk Counties 
Lorne Boyko, Fred Morison

GRCA Current

www.grandriver.ca Grand River Conservation Authority

Snyder’s Flats and dogs
Recent efforts to enforce the regulation that

requires dogs to remain leashed at Snyder’s Flats in
Waterloo have resulted in a great deal of interest
from the public.

Some members of the public are in support of
the enforcement efforts while others advocate that
this should become a leash-free dog park. Feelings
on both sides are strong.

Increase enforcement in June came about in
response to a complaint from a resident whose
children were frightened by off-leash dogs. 

During June, GRCA staff visited the site on nine
occasions. They laid seven charges for dogs off
leash, three trespass bans and 21 people received
warnings for swimming in the ponds. While there
are six off-leash parks in Guelph, the number in
Waterloo Region is more limited, so this is a well-
used location.

Snyder’s Flats has been owned by the GRCA
since 1969 and recent work on the property had
the primary goal of increasing fish and wildlife
habitat within the Grand River floodplain. Volun-
teers and donor organizations helped achieve this
by contributing funds for a variety of wetlands and
habitats as well as an interpreted trail . 

The presentations on the issue and discussion at
the board table revealed that board members are
also on both sides of this issue. 

GRCA staff were asked to provide a report with
more details about the impact of dogs at Snyders
Flats. This report will be brought to the board in
July.

Board endorses Grand River
Water Management Plan

The GRCA endorsed the updated Grand River
Watershed Water Management Plan as a plan of
best practices.

The draft plan was posted to the website in
April for endorsement by member municipalities.
Most have endorsed the plan which has been
developed over the past five years. Staff from part-

ner watershed municipalities, the provincial min-
istries of Environment, Agriculture and Food,
Natural Resources, Environment Caranda, Six
Nations of the Grand River and the GRCA came
together to review the current water management ,
address critical issues and identify action plans.
These will be carried out by partners collectively. 

The provincial and federal government min-
istries and the two First Nations in the Grand
River are also being asked to endorse the plan.

For more information check
www.grandriver.ca/wmp. 

New appointments to GRCF
Two new directors were appointed to the Grand

River Conservation Foundation in June— Wayne
Fyffe of Paris and James den Ouden of Kitchener.

At the same annual general meeting, Brantford
resident Joy O’Donnell was elected for a two-year
term as chair while Doug Brock from Waterloo
becomes the past chair.

Founded in 1965, the GRCF channels donations
from individuals, foundations, groups and busi-
nesses to Grand River Conservation Authority
projects. More than $10 million has been raised so
far.

The annual report is posted on www.grcf.ca and
printed copies are also available. 

Warm June weather
June began very dry with below the long-term

average rainfall in the first half of the month
across the watershed, except at Guelph Lake.

During the middle of the month, there were
rainfall events in the northern part of the water-
shed, but the southern Grand remained dry. Rain-
fall near the end of the month was widespread.

The average temperature was 18 degrees, about
one degree above the long-term average at the
Shand Dam climate station. The warm weather in
May and June has ended a six month stretch of
cool weather.

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.5



This issue of GRCA Current was pub-
lished in July 2014.

It is a summary of the June business
conducted by the Grand River Conser-
vation Authority board and committees
as well as other noteworthy happenings
and topics of interest. 

The Grand River Conservation Authority
welcomes the copying, forwarding and
distribution of GRCA Current. 

Next board meeting: Friday, July 25 at
9:30 a.m., GRCA Administration Centre.

Reports mentioned in GRCA Current: 
www.grandriver.ca/MeetingReports.

For coming events, please see
www.grandriver.ca/Events.

The Grand Actions newsletter is available
online at:
www.grandriver.ca/GrandActions

Follow the GRCA:PO Box 729, 400 Clyde Road, Cambridge, Ontario  N1R 5W6  (519) 621-2761

This is a rest stop for kayakers exploring Conestogo Lake Park, which has excellent boat launch
facilities. The lake is especially popular for fishing, power boats, sailing and camping, but it is
also a great place for paddlers.

The work is being financed by Environ-
ment Canada under its Great Lakes Nutrient
Initiative, which is aimed at improving the
health of Lake Erie. The Grand River water-
shed is a major source of water to the lake. 

The survey results will be used to help
estimate the types, levels and distribution of
these activities as well as their economic
value. To see the surveys  go to
www.grandriver.ca/newsroom/news.cfm.

Reservoirs are within the normal operat-
ing range for this time of year. Augmentation
from the large reservoirs accounted for about
40 per cent of the flow through Kitchener, 15
per cent at Brantford and 15 per cent on the
Speed River below Guelph. 

Wet conditions since last fall resulted in
rising groundwater levels at various monitor-
ing wells throughout the watershed. 

Apps’ Mill Nature Centre
receives major gifts

Apps’ Mill Nature Centre in Brant County
will get a major upgrade next year thanks to
donations made through the Grand River
Conservation Foundation. 

SC Johnson & Son Ltd. of Brantford has
taken a leadership role on the renovations
with a $100,000 donation that will support
upgrades to classroom and outdoor learning
spaces as well as improved accessibility to
the centre. The company is a long-term part-
ner of the GRCF.

Improvements that are being undertaken
include an elevator, exterior landscaping
such as the outdoor classroom, ramps, better
storage and fully accessible washrooms and
classroom upgrades. 

While the project is still in the planning
stage, the upgrades are planned for the sum-
mer of 2015. So far about $250,000 has been
raised of the $300,000 that is needed from
many donors. 

If you would like to contribute to this or
any other project supported by the GRCF,
please contact Sara Wilbur at 519-621-2763,
ext. 2272. 

GRCA provincial
offences officers

The GRCA has 28 staff members who are
designated to enforce the regulations appli-
cable on land owned by the GRCA. 

Five new staff members were appointed as
regulations officers in June. Typically, park
superintendents, assistant superintendents
and park operations technicians have been
designated as POA officers once they have
completed training.

Over the years, the role and importance of
the GRCA’s enforcement program has
changed due to shifting needs. The current
challenges result from increased pressure on
GRCA properties that are used by the public.

With increasing use of GRCA lands, there
are an increasing number of issues such as
alcohol abuse, vandalism, dogs that are off-
leash and trespassing. Local police are not
always in a position to respond and the
GRCA must ensure that adequate staff are
available to protect the land, GRCA staff and
the public at these locations.

One-year contract
The GRCA and Ontario Public Service

Employees Union (OPSEU) Local 259,
which represents unionized staff, have nego-
tiated a one-year contract that will expire on
Dec. 31, 2014. 

The contract includes a 1.1 per cent wage
increase, changes to benefits for full-time,
temporary and seasonal staff, as well as lan-
guage about lateral transfers, sick days and
one new personal day off.

Negotiations between the union and the
GRCA took place this spring over five days. 

River recreation surveys
DSS Management Consultants Inc., on

behalf of Environment Canada, is carrying
out surveys to learn more about recreational
activities in the Grand River. 

You can help by participating in these sur-
veys on boating, fishing and swimming. 



August 2014  •  Volume 19, Number 8

GRCA General Membership

Chair Jane Mitchell

Vice-Chair Vic Prendergast

Townships of Amaranth, East
Garafraxa, Melancthon and South-
gate and Town of Grand Valley

Tom Nevills 

Townships of Mapleton 
and Wellington North Pat Salter 

Township of Centre Wellington 
Joanne Ross-Zuj

Town of Erin, Townships of
Guelph/Eramosa and Puslinch

John Brennan

City of Guelph
Bob Bell, Maggie Laidlaw

Region of Waterloo
Les Armstrong, Todd Cowan, 

Jan d’Ailly, Rob Deutschmann,
Jean Haalboom, Ross Kelterborn,

Geoff Lorentz, Claudette Miller,
Jane Mitchell, Warren Stauch

Municipality of North Perth 
and Township of Perth East 

George Wicke

Halton Region J. Barry Lee

City of Hamilton Jeanette Jamieson

Oxford County Bruce Banbury

County of Brant
Brian Coleman, Steve Schmitt

City of Brantford 
Robert Hillier, Vic Prendergast

Haldimand and Norfolk Counties 
Lorne Boyko, Fred Morison

GRCA Current

www.grandriver.ca Grand River Conservation Authority

New volunteer program
A $273,800 grant from the Ontario Trillium

Foundation will allow the GRCA to set up a new
formalized volunteer program over four years. 

A volunteer coordinator will be hired to pro-
mote existing and new volunteer opportunities,
develop a list of GRCA projects suitable for volun-
teers and match volunteers to the GRCA’s needs.
This new staff person will also seek support to
make this program sustainable in the long-term
and to ensure that health and safety processes are
in place for volunteers.

GRCA staff members receive frequent questions
about volunteer opportunities. Some of these can
be accommodated in the area of tree planting, trail
improvement and outdoor education, however
until now many people have been referred to part-
ner organizations. 

This new program will engage new volunteers,
help the GRCA look after passive lands and help
connect people with the environment through
outdoor experiences.

EAB to cost $4 million
The GRCA expects to spend $4 million over the

next four years in response to the destruction
caused by the emerald ash borer. 

The GRCA’s original plan called for spending of
$1 million each year between 2014 and 2017,
mostly to remove hazard trees. This work was
delayed in 2014 due to the need to reallocate
resources to ice storm cleanup. The most recent
forecast shows that $200,000 will be spent this
year for EAB, with the remaining $3.8 million to
be spent in future years. 

The beetle is expected to kill all ash trees over a
couple of centimetres in diameter within10 to 15
years. 

The cost of dealing with the arrival of this inva-
sive beetle is subject to change due to many fac-
tors. These include the unpredictable rate of infes-
tation, how and where hazard trees are removed
and how much restoration will be done after trees
are removed. 

The forecast assumes that reserves will be used
to fund infestation expenses. The money in those
reserves is from the sale of surplus properties and
can only be used for high-priority projects that
have a provincial interest. 

However, the GRCA is injecting 200 trees on
GRCA land with a bioinsecticide to save these
trees. The injections will be done every two years
for eight to 10 years.

Mounting cleanup costs
Cleanup costs related to the ice storm last

December continue to mount for the GRCA. 

At the end of July, the cleanup cost was estimat-
ed at $625,000, primarily due to hazard tree
removal.

The province is helping municipalities and con-
servation authorities affected by the December
2013 ice storm by funding eligible response and
recovery costs through a one-time Ice Storm
Assistance Program. Eligible costs were incurred
to protect public health and safety, or provide
access to roads, sidewalks and frequently travelled
routes.

The GRCA has already applied to the province
for assistance in covering these costs and will be
submitting its claim later this summer. 

Campers of all ages 
It is looking like a good year for people to get

outdoors.

At the end of July, the Grand River Parks rev-
enue was slightly more than $3.8 million, which is
on par with this time last year. 

July was a busy month with many programs in
the parks that were organized by both the GRCA
and partner organizations.

Summer camp registration at the nature centres
is also higher than last summer. The camps were
86 per cent full by the end of July and the program
offerings at Apps’ Mill are more extensive than in
previous years. There are still a few spots left for

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.6



This issue of GRCA Current was pub-
lished in August 2014.

It is a summary of the July business con-
ducted by the Grand River Conservation
Authority board and committees as well
as other noteworthy happenings and
topics of interest. 

The Grand River Conservation Authority
welcomes the photocopying,
forwarding and distribution of GRCA
Current. 

Next board meeting: Friday, Aug. 22 at
9:30 a.m., GRCA Administration Centre.

Reports mentioned in GRCA Current: 
www.grandriver.ca/MeetingReports.

For coming events, please see
www.grandriver.ca/Calendar.

The Grand Actions newsletter is avail-
able online at:
www.grandriver.ca/GrandActions

Follow the GRCA:PO Box 729, 400 Clyde Road, Cambridge, Ontario  N1R 5W6  (519) 621-2761

some camps in August.

Restoration work
at Luther Marsh

A few restoration projects are taking place
at Luther Marsh. 

Spring tree planting saw about 25,000 trees
planted at Luther this spring. Invasive
species control of dog strangling vine will be
carried out thanks to funding provided by a
donor through the Grand River Conserva-
tion Foundation. Grassland restoration seed-
ing was completed on four of five fields. The
fifth field (27 hectares) will be sprayed and
seeded in the fall. 

Also at Luther, marsh and grassland bird
surveys were completed.

Monitoring Asian carp
On July 7 the federal government

announced a new Asian carp science lab has
opened up in Burlington at the Canada Cen-
tre for Inland Waters. 

This lab will allow scientists to quickly test
fish DNA samples from the Great Lakes.
This is part of the federal government’s effort
to identify the threat of Asian carp.

Two Asian carp were found last year near
the mouth of the Grand River. Fortunately,
they were sterilized fish and unable to repro-
duce. 

The Department of Fisheries and Oceans
(DFO) Aquatic Science staff continue to
monitor the southern Grand River for Asian
carp, however no more fish have been found.

Four species of Asian carp were brought
from Asia to North America in the 1960s
and  ‘70s. Since then, they have migrated
north through U.S. waterways towards the
Great Lakes. Preventing them from spread-
ing into the Great Lakes is the best way to
prevent harm to Ontario’s native fish species.

Wet July weather 
Rainfall was above the long-term average

across the watershed in July and there were
many rainstorms. 

At Burford, about 100 mm of rain fell
overnight toward the end of the month. 

Two water safety messages were issued by
the GRCA in July — one on July 14 for the
Grand River from Shand Dam to Fergus due

to dam gate testing. The other was on July 28
warning of high flows throughout the water-
shed due to heavy rainfall at the end of the
month.

The temperature averaged 18.5 degrees,
which is a degree cooler than the long-term
average at the Shand Dam. Lake Erie was
higher than average at the end of the month. 

CHRS 10 year 
monitoring report

The 10 year monitoring report about the
Grand River and its tributaries for the Cana-
dian Heritage Rivers System is now posted
on the GRCA website.

This report is required because this is the
20th anniversary of the designation of these
rivers as Canadian Heritage Rivers. It covers
the new threats, changes and losses related to
heritage and recreational values as well as
natural features within the watershed since
2004.

The Heritage Working Group and many
GRCA staff were consulted in preparing the
report. It also features photos that were sub-
mitted to the GRCA photo contest.

Mill Creek rangers
The Mill Creek Rangers and summer

campers explored aquatic life in and near
Mill Creek as it flows through Shade’s Mills

in Cambridge on July 17. 

The Rangers are four high school students
and a university-aged crew leader who are
spending the summer carrying out restora-
tion projects along Mill Creek, which flows
from the Guelph area to Cambridge (Galt)
where it enters the Grand River.

The ranger crew is a project of the Friends
of Mill Creek. They are employed for eight
weeks to carry out projects to improve the
health and diversity of Mill Creek. 

GRCA forester Ron Wu-Winter gets set to inject an ash tree with a bioinsecticide to save it from
the emerald ash borer. This is expensive and needs to be done to each tree every two years for

10 years. The GRCA is injection 200 trees across the watershed to save them.



From: L
Sent: Tu
To: Gra
Subject
 
Ministry
Municip
and Hou
 
Office of
 
777 Bay
Toronto 
Tel.  416
Fax  416

August 5

Mr. Gran
Chief Ad
Townsh
60 Snyd
Baden O

Dear Mr

Thank y

The min
provided
2013 ice
eligible r

Later thi
program
submiss
 
In the in
costs in 
assesse
audit req
docume
evidence
 
As a rem
to the D

Laurie LeBla
uesday, Au
nt Whittingt
t: Ice Storm

y of 
pal Affairs 
using 

f the Deput

y Street, 17
ON  M5G 2

6-585-7100
6-585-7211

5, 2014 

nt Whittingt
dministrativ
ip of Wilmo

der's Road W
ON N3A 1A

r. Whittingto

you for subm

nistry has ca
d sufficient 
e storm.  Yo
response a

is summer, 
m guidelines
sion.  The d

terim, pleas
your financ

ed against y
quirements
ntation, suc
e that work

minder, to b
ecember 2

anc 
ugust 05, 20
ton 

m Assistanc

ty Minister 

th Floor 
2E5 

0 
 

ton 
ve Officer 
ot 
West 

A1 

on: 

mitting an e

arefully revi
evidence o

ou are eligib
nd recover

the ministr
s and claim 
deadline for 

se continue
cial system
your suppor
.  To be fou
ch as dama

k was comp

be consider
1-22 ice sto

014 4:20 PM

e Program 

Min
Affa
et d

Bure

777
Toro
Tél.
Télé

expression o

iewed your
of damage i
ble to proce
ry costs. 

ry will send 
forms.  Ple
the claim s

e to track ic
.  Please al
rting docum
und eligible
age reports
pleted. 

ed eligible 
orm event, 

M 

- Expressio

istère des
aires munic
u Logeme

eau du sou

, rue Bay, 1
onto ON  M
 416-585-7

éc.  416-585

of interest t

r submissio
ncurred as 
eed to the f

eligible cla
ease use th
submission

ce storm cos
lso keep in 

mentation a
, costs mus
, time shee

for reimbur
be increme

on of Intere

cipales 
ent 

s-ministre

17e étage
M5G 2E5 
7100 
5-7211 

to the Ice S

n and dete
a result of 

full claim sta

aimants a p
hese materi
 is October

sts separat
mind that a
nd also will
st be suppo
ets, invoices

rsement, co
ental to stan

est Outcom

Storm Assis

rmined that
the Decem
age to seek

ackage of d
ials to prep
r 31, 2014. 

tely from no
all claimed 
l be subject
orted by det
s, proof of p

osts must b
ndard opera

e 

stance Prog

t you have 
mber 21-22,
k assistanc

detailed 
are a full cl

ormal opera
costs will b
t to rigorous
tailed 
payment, a

be clearly lin
ating budge

gram. 

 
ce for 

aim 

ating 
be 
s 

nd 

nked 
ets, 

 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.7



and be incurred to protect public health and safety or to secure access to public roads, 
sidewalks, or frequently travelled routes.  The target date for incurring costs was June 
22, 2014. 
 
Thank you once again for your interest in the program.  If you have any questions, 
please do not hesitate to contact the ministry by e-mail at icestorm.program@ontario.ca 
or contact your local Municipal Services Office. 

Sincerely yours, 
 
 
Laurie LeBlanc 
Deputy Minister 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
10.8



 TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

BY-LAW NO. 2014-33 

BY-LAW TO FURTHER AMEND BY-LAW NO. 83-38 OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT BEING A  

ZONING BY-LAW FOR THE SAID TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT. 

 

   WHEREAS The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot deems it desirable 

to further amend By-law No. 83-38, being a Zoning By-law for the said Township of Wilmot. 

   THEREFORE THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF 

THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the Holding Zone symbol (H) is hereby removed from the lands 

described on Schedule "A" and illustrated on Schedule "B" attached to and 

forming part of this by-law and the zoning designation for the said lands 

shall be Zone 12, all in accordance with the provisions of Section 36 of the 

Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990. 

2. The permitted uses, on the lands described on Schedule "A" attached to and 

forming part of this by-law and illustrated on Schedule "B" attached to and 

forming part of this by-law, shall be in accordance with the provisions of By-law 

No. 83-38, as amended.  

3. This by-law shall come into effect on the final passing thereof by the Council of 

The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot subject to compliance with the 

provisions of The Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990 and amendments thereto. 

READ a first and second time on the 25th day of August, 2014. 

READ a third time and finally passed in Open Council on the 25th day of August, 2014. 

 

  
 MAYOR 
 

 

   
 CLERK 
 



 SCHEDULE “A” 

 

  ALL AND SINGULAR that certain parcel or tract of land and premises situate, lying 

and being in the Township of Wilmot, in the Regional Municipality of Waterloo and Province of Ontario 

being composed of Part of Lot 18, Concession South of Snyder’s Road in the said Township of 

Wilmot and being more particularly described as Part 2, Plan 58R-17590. 

 

This is Schedule "A" to By-law No. 2014-33.   

PASSED this 25th day of August, 2014. 

 

 

                                                                                        

  MAYOR 

 

                                                                                      

  CLERK 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Zone 12

Zone 12 

N
AFZIG

ER
 R

O
AD

SNYDER'S ROAD WEST

WATERLOO STREET

SCHEDULE "B"
PART OF LOT 18, CONCESSION SOUTH OF SNYDER'S ROAD

BEING PART 2, PLAN 58R-17590
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT

SUBJECT LANDS OUTLINED THUS:

THIS IS SCHEDULE "B" TO BY-LAW NO. 2014-33
PASSED THIS 25TH DAY OF AUGUST 2014.

MAYOR

CLERK´ 0 50 100 150

Meters




























	Agenda
	Minutes July 21, 2014
	Minutes August 11, 2014
	7.1
	9.1.1
	9.2.1
	9.2.2
	9.3.1
	9.4.1
	9.5.1
	9.5.2
	9.6.1
	10.1
	10.2
	10.3
	10.4
	10.5
	10.6
	10.7
	10.8
	11.1
	2014-33 _Steinmanns Cemetery HZone Removal_
	2014-33 Steinmann Cemetery

	11.2
	11.3



